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Financial Highlights

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

(dollar amounts in millions, except per common share amounts and unless otherwise noted)

Financial Results 201 2010

Net income from continuing operations $ 2,569 $ 2,647
Net loss from discontinued operations — (66)
Net income 2,569 2,581
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests (53) (63)
Net income applicable to common shareholders of
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation $ 2,516 $ 2,518
Earnings per common share — diluted
Continuing operations $ 2.03 $ 211
Discontinued operations - (0.05)
Net income applicable to common stock $ 2.03 $ 205 @

Continuing Operations - Key Data

Total revenue $ 14,730 $ 13,875
Total expenses 1,112 10170
Fee revenue as a percentage of total revenue

excluding net securities gains (losses) 78% 78%
Percentage of non-U.S. total revenue ® 37% 36%
Assets under management at year end (in billions) $ 1,260 $ 1172
Assets under custody and administration at year end (in trillions) $ 25.8 $ 25.0

Balance Sheet

Total assets $ 325,266 $ 247,259
Total deposits 219,094 145,339
Total The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation

common shareholders’ equity 33,417 32,354

Capital Ratios at Dec. 31©

Estimated Basel Il Tier 1 common equity ratio - Non-GAAP (d)e) 71% N/A
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity to total assets ratio © 10.3 13.1%
Tangible BNY Mellon common shareholders’ equity to tangible assets

of operations ratio - Non-GAAP ) 6.4 5.8
Determined under Basel | guidelines:
Tier 1 common to risk-weighted assets ratio - Non-GAAP 4 13.4 1.8
Tier 1 capital ratio 15.0 13.4
Total (Tier 1 plus Tier 2) capital ratio 17.0 16.3
Leverage capital ratio 5.2 58

(a) Does not foot due to rounding.

(b) Includes fee revenue, net interest revenue and income of consolidated investment management funds, net of net
income attributable to noncontrolling interests.

(c) Results in 2010 include discontinued operations.

(d) Our estimated Basel Ill Tier T common equity ratio (Non-GAAP) reflects our current interpretation of the Basel Ill rules.
Our estimated Basel Ill Tier T common equity ratio could change in the future as the U.S. regulatory agencies
implement Basel Il or if our businesses change.

(e)  See Supplemental Information beginning on page 66 for a calculation of these ratios.



Dear Fellow Shareholders

2011 was a difficult year. Revenues were less than expected and expenses were too high as we dealt
with a challenging environment. Still, we continued to develop and execute our plans to improve our
operating margins, differentiate our products, and ensure we continue to contribute in meaningful
ways to the smooth and efficient functioning of the global capital markets.

During 2011, we made significant progress on a number of fronts:
* achieved above-median revenue growth compared with our peers;

* continued to receive top rankings for client satisfaction and industry recognition for investment
performance;

» further strengthened our balance sheet in terms of liquidity, asset quality and capital. At year end,
our Basel | Tier 1 common equity ratio was 13.4 percent’;

* achieved superior returns versus U.S. banking peers on our tangible and regulatory capital;

* implemented a series of efficiency initiatives to reduce our cost base and manage through the
current environment, with clear evidence of progress on expenses in our fourth-quarter results;

*  successfully completed the sale of our non-core Shareowner Services business; and
* repurchased approximately 35 million shares and raised the quarterly dividend by 44 percent.

But our stock price performance has been unacceptable. We know we must improve our shareholder
return. And | am confident that we will, given the strength of our business model and our plans to
enhance revenue growth and drive operational excellence.

Our Business Model
To appreciate our potential and comprehend the nature of our challenges, it's necessary to
understand what we do.

*  We are an investments company, with significant scale in virtually all of our businesses and more
expertise in managing and servicing investments than any other firm. We help clients at every
stage of the investment life cycle — whether they are looking to create, trade or hold assets, or
need help managing, distributing or restructuring them. The breadth of our offerings creates
significant opportunities for us to build broader and deeper client relationships.

*  Our model is primarily fee-based, with little credit risk. A large percentage of our revenue —
78 percent — comes from recurring fees, which is above our peer group median. That has helped
us maintain a strong, highly liquid balance sheet, with a solid capital position and strong credit
ratings.

*  Our model generates capital rapidly. It also generates significant levels of earnings. Much of
these earnings, subject to regulatory approval, can be returned to you in the form of dividends
and share repurchases.

*  We benefit from the long-term trends of organic growth in financial assets and the globalization
of the financial markets.

Our company has been designated by international regulators as one of the 29 Global Systemically
Important Financial Institutions (G-SIFls). This designation recognizes our fundamental importance
to the health and operation of the global capital markets. The designation also carries with it an
implicit responsibility to maintain the highest standards of excellence, and we take that responsibility
seriously. In all that we undertake, we are committed to carefully considering the impact of our
actions on our clients and the markets.
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Let me discuss our 2011 performance:

Investment Services - Most of the key drivers of our Investment Services businesses showed
significant improvement over 2010. Growth of assets under custody and administration outpaced our
closest trust and custody peers, up 3 percent to $25.8 trillion. Average active clearing accounts grew
11 percent, average collateral management balances were up 13 percent and the number of sponsored
depositary receipt programs increased 2 percent. Average total Investment Services deposits grew
32 percent, again outpacing peers. Total debt serviced, however, declined 2 percent, reflecting the
lack of structured debt issuance and the slow recovery of the debt capital markets.

We continued to expand our capabilities in 2011, particularly in the areas of asset servicing, clearing,
collateral management and alternative investment services. In a year in which we received industry
recognition for our innovative use of technology, we introduced new tools to increase investment
transparency and released iPad® apps to allow client access to information and reporting.

Investment Management - Our overall Investment Management businesses maintained focus on
delivering strong investment performance and outstanding wealth management capabilities for our
clients. Our long-term organic flows continued to grow, with assets under management (AUM) up

8 percent to a record level of $1.26 trillion, reflecting a 130 percent increase in net AUM flows in 2011,
which significantly outpaced that of our peers.

We made progress in laying a foundation to optimize our multi-boutique model by building out our
investment, distribution and infrastructure capabilities, with a particular focus on Asia Pacific. We
also continued to develop distinctive investment capabilities, such as our liability-driven investment
strategies. Wealth Management expanded its footprint, entering Chicago, the third-largest U.S.
wealth market, through the acquisition of the established operations of one of the region’s premier
independent investment managers.

Enhancing Revenue Growth
To make us more resilient to market dynamics, we have a number of strategies in place to increase
client assets under management, custody and administration.

* Deepening client relationships - There is tremendous room to increase the value we deliver to
our clients and, thereby, earn more of their business. Over the past year, we have refined our
global client management model to better align our resources with our clients’ needs.

* Increasing our capabilities - In Investment Services, we are collaborating across our businesses
to develop more sophisticated and innovative multi-product solutions for our clients. In
Investment Management, we see opportunities to expand our global credit investment
capabilities; advance our market position in absolute return, asset allocation and alternative
investment solutions; and broaden and strengthen our global distribution. We also are looking
to further expand our Wealth Management franchise, continuing a long tradition of helping our
clients weather market cycles.

* Building a global presence - To maximize our returns in a prudent and focused way, we are
continuing to build upon our global footprint in countries and regions with the strongest revenue
potential for our company. In 2011, for example, our investment in Germany enabled us to achieve
our goal of becoming the No. 1 custody provider in that country.



Driving Operational Excellence

Operational excellence refers to delivering the highest service quality, increasing our operating
margins through the use of technology and taking risk out of our company and the financial system.
Those goals are complementary and mutually reinforcing, not mutually exclusive. We are finding
opportunities to improve the client experience while reducing the potential for errors and reducing
our costs.

For instance, we are making investments in our technology infrastructure that will help improve ease
of use for clients, allow us to introduce new products more quickly and lower technology costs. We
are also utilizing cloud technology to distribute applications in a virtual environment, effectively
eliminating proprietary hardware and software.

Through these and other operational excellence activities, we expect to realize roughly $650 million
to $700 million in expense savings by 2015, with substantial benefits in the intervening years.

Deploying Our Capital

Our business model generated approximately $2.8 billion worth of capital in 2011. Our ability to
rapidly generate capital is enabling us to invest in our businesses, strengthen our balance sheet and,
subject to regulatory approval, return capital to our shareholders in the form of dividends and share
buybacks. Acquisitions remain a lesser priority in the near term.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the last few years, we have adopted fairly ambitious corporate social responsibility goals related
to supporting our communities, developing our people and promoting environmental sustainability. In
a short time, we have accomplished many of these goals and continue to push ourselves to do more.

This year, we donated $33.6 million to our communities around the world through philanthropic
grants, sponsorships, employee giving and company matching donations. The number of employee
teams involved in volunteering and fundraising has more than tripled since the launch of our
Community Partnership program three years ago, with employees contributing more than 140,000
hours. We call our strategic approach to helping people in need “Powering Potential.” We have
extended that program to help returning military personnel, providing support in the areas of critical
basic needs, workforce skills and career development. We also have a special focus on helping at-risk
youth. Our support for youth is producing significantly higher graduation rates and employment and
reduced homelessness. This program was honored in 2011 with awards in Boston, London, New York
and Pittsburgh. All of this good work will continue.

Looking Ahead

We are well aware of the headwinds we face. We have entered a period in which revenue growth will
be more difficult to achieve than in, perhaps, any period over the past 20 years. Economies globally
remain sluggish, with a general lack of confidence and uncertainty inhibiting growth. This is reflected
in high levels of market volatility and continued deleveraging of major market participants. Interest
rates remain persistently low, limiting our ability to earn net interest income from client deposits.

While net interest income and strong global capital markets are important drivers of our
performance, they are not the only drivers. How well we service our clients, the strength of client
relationships, and our ability to innovate and drive operational excellence will have a major impact
on our performance. We are positioned to perform well in each of these areas. In 2012, we expect
our net savings from operational excellence initiatives to range from $240 million to $260 million,
toward our goal of achieving net savings of approximately $650 million to $700 million by 2015.
These savings will help us achieve operating leverage, even in a slow-growth environment. And
we expect our revenues to grow as we execute our strategies.

III
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The financial services industry, in general, has faced a dramatic increase in legal and regulatory
scrutiny, actions and costs, and our company is no exception. The foreign exchange litigation has
received a substantial amount of attention. With our reputation and integrity being challenged, we
have undertaken an aggressive outreach program to our clients, media, regulators and interested
parties to ensure they know the facts. We have also been listening to our clients and developing new
foreign exchange options to meet their evolving needs, including an innovative defined spread pricing
option that is positioned to set a new standard. We realize we must innovate to stay competitive as a
provider in this space, and we will.

Making Our Company Even Greater

| am honored to lead BNY Mellon. | have tremendous belief in the potential of our company and
pride in its capacity to navigate through challenging times, operate with integrity and remain
focused on our clients’ success. My sole focus is to make this great company even greater for all
of our constituents — clients, employees and you, our shareholders.

| also have considerable confidence in the 49,000 professionals who work as a unified global team,
each contributing to the diversity of thought, ideas and talents that help our clients succeed. | thank
them for all they do every day for our clients, company, colleagues and communities.

| also thank our board of directors for its wise counsel and support, and for entrusting the Executive
Committee and me with leading this company forward. | offer my special thanks to John Surma, who
will not stand for re-election to our board after eight years of service, for his significant contributions
and service.

| strongly believe in our ability to deliver great investment management advice and investment
services to our clients, as well as consistent earnings per share growth and attractive returns to you,
our shareholders.

Jeeaty {oforety

Gerald L. Hassell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

"For an explanation and reconciliation of this non-GAAP measure, see
“Supplemental Information” on page 66 of this Annual Report.
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Financial Summary

(dollar amounts in millions, except per common share
amounts and unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 (a)

Year ended Dec. 31

Fee revenue $ 11,498 $ 10,697 $ 10,108 $ 12,342 $ 9,254
Net securities gains (losses) 48 27 (5,369) (1,628) (201)
Income of consolidated investment management funds 200 226 - - -
Net interest revenue 2,984 2,925 2,915 2,859 2,245
Total revenue 14,730 13,875 7,654 13,573 11,298
Provision for credit losses 1 11 332 104 (11)
Noninterest expense 11,112 10,170 9,530 11,523 8,094
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes 3,617 3,694 (2,208) 1,946 3,215
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,048 1,047 (1,395) 491 987
Net income (loss) from continuing operations 2,569 2,647 (813) 1,455 2,228

Net income (loss) from discontinued operations - (66) (270) 14 10

Extraordinary (loss) on consolidation of commercial paper

conduits, net of tax - - - (26) (180)

Net income (loss) 2,569 2,581 (1,083) 1,443 2,058
Net (income) attributable to noncontrolling interests (83) (63) (D (24) (19)
Redemption charge and preferred dividends - - (283) (33) -

Net income (loss) applicable to common shareholders of The
Bank of New York Mellon Corporation $ 2,516 $ 2,518 $ (1,367) $ 1,386 $ 2,039

Earnings per diluted common share applicable to common
shareholders of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation:

Net income (loss) from continuing operations $ 203 $ 211 $ (0.93) $  1.21 $ 235
Net income (loss) from discontinued operations - (0.05) (0.23) 0.01 0.01
Extraordinary (loss), net of tax - - - (0.02) (0.19)
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock $ 2.03 $ 205(h) $ (1.16)(c) $ 1.20 $ 217
At Dec. 31
Interest-earning assets $259,231 $180,541 $161,537 $184,591 $144,883
Assets of operations 313,919 232,493 212,224 237,512 197,656
Total assets 325,266 247,259 212,224 237,512 197,656
Deposits 219,094 145,339 135,050 159,673 118,125
Long-term debt 19,933 16,517 17,234 15,865 16,873
Preferred (Series B) stock - - - 2,786 -
Total The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation common
shareholders’ equity 33,417 32,354 28,977 25,264 29,403
At Dec. 31
Assets under management (in billions) $ 1,260 $ 1,172 $ 1,115 $ 928 $ 1,121
Assets under custody and administration (in trillions) 25.8 25.0 22.3 20.2 23.1
Cross-border assets (in trillions) 9.7 9.2 8.8 7.5 10.0
Market value of securities on loan (in billions) (d) 269 278 247 326 633

(a) Results for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six months of legacy The Bank of New York Company, Inc.

(b) Does not foot due to rounding.

(c) Diluted earnings per common share for 2009 was calculated using average basic shares. Adding back the dilutive shares would be
anti-dilutive.

(d) Represents the securities on loan managed by the Investment Services business.
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The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation (and its subsidiaries)

Financial Summary (continued)

(dollar amounts in millions, except per common share

amounts and unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 (a)
Net income basis:
Return on common equity () 7.5% 8.1% N/M 5.0% 11.0%
Return on tangible common equity (b) 22.6 25.6 N/M 20.7 29.3
Return on average assets (b) 0.86 1.06 N/M 0.67 1.49
Continuing operations basis:
Return on common equity (b)(c) 7.5% 8.3% N/M 5.0% 10.9%
Non-GAAP adjusted (b)(c) 8.6 9.5 9.2% 14.2 13.6
Return on tangible common equity — Non-GAAP (b)(c) 22.6 26.3 N/M 20.5 29.2
Non-GAAP adjusted (b)(c) 233 27.1 31.6 48.7 33.6
Pre-tax operating margin (c) 25 27 N/M 14 28
Non-GAAP adjusted (c) 28 30 31 39 36
Fee revenue as a percentage of total revenue excluding net
securities gains (losses) 78 78 78 79 80
Fee revenue per employee (based on average
headcount) (in thousands) $ 237 $ 241 $ 241 $ 290 $ 291
Percentage of non-U.S. revenue (d) 37% 36% 53% (e) 33% (f) 32%
Net interest margin (on fully taxable equivalent basis) 1.36 1.70 1.82 1.89 (f) 2.05
Cash dividends per common share $ 048 3 036 $ 0.51 $ 0.96 $ 0.95
Common dividend payout ratio 24% 18% N/M 80% 44%
Dividend yield 2.4% 1.2% 1.8% 3.4% 1.9%
Closing common stock price per common share $ 1991 $ 3020 $ 2797 $ 2833 $ 4876
Market capitalization (in billions) 24.1 37.5 33.8 325 55.9
Book value per common share — GAAP (¢) 27.62 26.06 23.99 22.00 25.66
Tangible book value per common share — Non-GAAP (c¢) 10.57 8.91 7.90 5.18 8.00
Full-time employees 48,700 48,000 42,200 42,500 41,200
Year-end common shares outstanding (in thousands) 1,209,675 1,241,530 1,207,835 1,148,467 1,145,983
Average total equity to average total assets 11.5% 13.1% 13.4% 13.7% 13.6%
Capital ratios at Dec. 31 (g)
Estimated Basel III Tier 1 common equity ratio—
Non-GAAP (c¢)(h) 7.1% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Basel I Tier 1 common equity to risk-weighted assets
ratio-Non-GAAP (¢) 134 11.8 10.5 94 7.6
Basel I Tier 1 capital ratio 15.0 13.4 12.1 13.2 9.3
Basel I Total (Tier 1 plus Tier 2) capital ratio 17.0 16.3 16.0 16.9 13.2
Basel I leverage capital ratio 5.2 5.8 6.5 6.9 6.5
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity to total assets ratio (c) 10.3 13.1 13.7 10.6 14.9
Tangible common shareholders’ equity to tangible assets
of operations ratio — Non-GAAP (c) 6.4 5.8 52 3.8 5.2
(a) Results for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six months of legacy The Bank of New York Company, Inc.
(b) Calculated before the extraordinary losses in 2008 and 2007.
(c) See “Supplemental Information” beginning on page 66 for a calculation of these ratios.
(d) Includes fee revenue, net interest revenue and income of consolidated investment management funds, net of net income attributable to
noncontrolling interests.
(e) Excluding investment securities losses, the percentage of non-U.S. fee revenue was 32%.
(f)  Excluding the SILO/LILO charge, the percentage of non-U.S. fee and net interest revenue was 32% and the net interest margin was
2.21%.
(g) Includes discontinued operations in 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
(h) Our estimated Basel Il Tier 1 common equity ratio (Non-GAAP) reflects our current interpretation of the Basel Il rules. Our

estimated Basel Il Tier 1 common equity ratio could change in the future as the U.S. regulatory agencies implement Basel I1I or if our
businesses change.

BNY Mellon 3



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Results of Operations

General

In this Annual Report, references to “our,” “we,” “us,”
“BNY Mellon,” the “Company” and similar terms for
periods on or after July 1, 2007 refer to The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation and its consolidated
subsidiaries, and references to “our,” “we,” “us,” the
“Company,” and similar terms prior to July 1, 2007
refer to The Bank of New York Company, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries. The term “Parent” refers to
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation but not
its subsidiaries.

BNY Mellon’s actual results of future operations may
differ from those estimated or anticipated in certain
forward-looking statements contained herein for
reasons which are discussed below and under the
heading “Forward-looking Statements.” When used in
this Annual Report, words such as “estimate,”
“forecast,” “project,” “anticipate,” “confident,”
“target,” “expect,” “intend,” “continue,” “seek,”
“believe,” “plan,” “goal,” “could,” “should,” “may,”
“will,” “strategy,” “synergies,” “opportunities,”
“trends,” and words of similar meaning, signify
forward-looking statements in addition to statements
specifically identified as forward-looking statements.

Certain business terms used in this document are
defined in the Glossary.

The following should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this
Annual Report.

How we reported results

All information for 2011 in this Annual Report is
reported on a net income basis. All information for
2010 and 2009 in this Annual Report is reported on a
continuing operations basis, unless otherwise noted.
For a description of discontinued operations, see
Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Throughout this Annual Report, certain measures,
which are noted as “Non-GAAP measures,” exclude
certain items. BN'Y Mellon believes that these
measures are useful to investors because they permit a
focus on period-to-period comparisons, using
measures that relate to our ability to enhance revenues
and limit expenses in circumstances where such
matters are within our control. We also present the net
interest margin on a fully taxable equivalent (“FTE”)
basis. We believe that this presentation allows for

4  BNY Mellon

comparison of amounts arising from both taxable and
tax-exempt sources and is consistent with industry
practice. Certain immaterial reclassifications have
been made to prior periods to place them on a basis
comparable with the current period presentation. See
“Supplemental information — Explanation of
Non-GAAP financial measures” beginning on page 66
for a reconciliation of financial measures presented in
accordance with GAAP to adjusted Non-GAAP
financial measures.

Organization of our business

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon realigned its
internal reporting structure and business presentation
to focus on its two principal businesses, Investment
Management and Investment Services. The
realignment reflects management’s approach to
assessing performance and decisions regarding
resource allocations. Investment Management
includes the former Asset Management and Wealth
Management businesses. Investment Services includes
the former Asset Servicing, Issuer Services and
Clearing Services businesses as well as the Cash
Management business previously included in the
former Treasury Services business. The Other
segment includes credit-related activities previously
included in the Treasury Services business, the lease
financing portfolio, corporate treasury activities,
including our investment securities portfolio, our
equity investments in Wing Hang Bank and
ConvergEx Group, business exits and corporate
overhead. The income statement has been changed to
reflect this realignment as follows:

e Investment management and performance fees
consist of the former asset and wealth
management fee revenue; and

e Investment services fees consist of the former
securities servicing fees, including asset
servicing, issuer services, clearing services, as
well as treasury services fee revenue.

All prior periods were reclassified. The
reclassifications did not affect the results of
operations.

Merger with Mellon Financial

On July 1, 2007, The Bank of New York Company,
Inc. and Mellon Financial Corporation (“Mellon
Financial”) merged into The Bank of New York
Mellon Corporation (together with its consolidated
subsidiaries, “BNY Mellon”), with BNY Mellon



Results of Operations (continued)

being the surviving entity (the “2007 Merger”).
Results for 2007 reflect six months of BNY Mellon
and six months of legacy The Bank of New York
Company, Inc.

Overview

BNY Mellon is the corporate brand of The Bank of
New York Mellon Corporation (NYSE symbol: BK).
BNY Mellon is a global financial services company
focused on helping clients manage and service their
financial assets, operating in 36 countries and serving
more than 100 markets. BNY Mellon is a leading
provider of financial services for institutions,
corporations and high-net-worth individuals, offering
superior investment management and investment
services through a worldwide client-focused team. At
Dec. 31, 2011, we had $25.8 trillion in assets under
custody and administration and $1.26 trillion in assets
under management, serviced $11.8 trillion in
outstanding debt and processed global payments
averaging $1.5 trillion per day.

BNY Mellon’s businesses benefit from the global
growth in financial assets and from the globalization
of the investment process. Over the long term, our
goals are focused on deploying capital to accelerate
the long-term growth of our businesses and achieving
superior total returns to shareholders by generating
first quartile earnings per share growth over time
relative to a group of peer companies.

Key components of our strategy include: providing
superior client service versus peers; strong investment
performance relative to investment benchmarks;
above-median revenue growth relative to peer
companies; increasing the percentage of revenue and
income derived from outside the United States;
successful integration of acquired businesses;
competitive margins; and positive operating leverage.
We have established Basel I Tier 1 capital as our
principal capital measure and have established a
targeted ratio of Basel I Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted
assets of 10%. We expect to update our capital targets
once new regulatory capital guidelines are finalized.

Key 2011 events
Sale of Shareowner Services

On Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon sold its Shareowner
Services business. The sales price of $550 million
resulted in a pre-tax gain of $98 million. We recorded
an immaterial after-tax gain primarily due to the

write-off of non-tax deductible goodwill associated
with the business. The transaction enhanced BNY
Mellon’s capital position, adding approximately 30
basis points to our estimated Basel III Tier 1 common
equity ratio at Dec. 31, 2011.

Acquisition of Penson Financial Services

On Nov. 30, 2011, we acquired Penson Financial
Services Australia Pty Ltd (“Penson”), a clearing firm
located in Australia, in a $33 million share purchase
transaction. Penson offers execution and clearing
services and provides processing for local exchange-
traded equities and exchange-traded options in
Australia. The results of Penson are included in the
Investment Services business.

Continuing global economic uncertainty

The global financial markets and economy remain
affected by a variety of concerns, including questions
about the creditworthiness of sovereign issuers within
Europe. Sovereign or financial institution defaults,
political uncertainties or credit downgrades could lead
to disruptions in the money markets, changes in
foreign exchange values, reductions in the
attractiveness and value of European assets, and/or an
increase in borrowing costs for consumers and
companies in Europe.

During 2011, the continued economic uncertainty in
the global markets contributed to a significant
increase in our balance sheet. Client deposits
increased $74 billion, which drove a $78 billion
increase in total assets. In response to this continued
uncertainty, we reduced exposure to higher risk
countries and increased our exposure to central banks.
Additionally, we continued to maintain a highly liquid
balance sheet with a ratio of liquid funds to total
assets of 42% at Dec. 31, 2011, while also reducing
our exposure to large global financial institutions.

Change in executive management

Effective Aug. 31, 2011, Robert P. Kelly resigned as
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director. Also
effective on Aug. 31, 2011, Gerald L. Hassell, BNY
Mellon’s President and a board member since 1998,
was appointed Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company.

Acquisition of Talon Asset Management
On July 1, 2011, BNY Mellon acquired the wealth

management operations of Chicago-based Talon Asset
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Management (“Talon”). Talon manages more than
$800 million in assets for wealthy families and
institutions. The acquisition of Talon represents BNY
Mellon’s first wealth management office in Chicago,
the third largest wealth management market in the
U.S. The results of Talon are included in the
Investment Management business.

Dividend increase and share repurchase program

In March 2011, BNY Mellon received confirmation
that the Federal Reserve did not object to its
comprehensive capital plan which provides for capital
actions, including a dividend increase and share
repurchases. Accordingly, on March 22, 2011, the
board of directors authorized a 44% increase in the
quarterly common stock dividend to $0.13 per
common share.

In 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million shares in the
open market, at an average price of $24.00 per share
for a total of $835 million. In 2012, we continued to
repurchase shares under the 2011 capital plan.
Through Feb. 27, 2012, we repurchased 17.3 million
shares in the open market, at an average price of
$21.53 per share for a total of $371 million.

Summary of financial results

We reported net income applicable to common
shareholders of BNY Mellon of $2.5 billion, or $2.03
per diluted common share in 2011 compared with
$2.5 billion, or $2.05 per diluted common share in
2010. In 2009, we reported a net loss applicable to
common shareholders of BNY Mellon of $1.4 billion,
or $1.16 per diluted common share. In 2010, net
income applicable to common shareholders on a
continuing operations basis was $2.6 billion, or $2.11
per diluted common share. In 2009, we incurred a net
loss applicable to common shareholders on a
continuing operations basis of $1.1 billion, or $0.93
per diluted common share.

Highlights of 2011 results

e Assets under custody and administration
(“AUC”) totaled $25.8 trillion at Dec. 31, 2011
compared with $25.0 trillion at Dec. 31, 2010.

The increase primarily reflects net new business.

(See the “Investment Services business”
beginning on page 21).

e Assets under management (“AUM”), excluding
securities lending assets, totaled $1.26 trillion at
Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $1.17 trillion at
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Dec. 31, 2010. The increase was primarily
driven by net new business. (See the
“Investment Management business” beginning
on page 18).

Investment services fees totaled $6.8 billion in
2011 compared with $6.1 billion in 2010. The
increase primarily resulted from the full year
impact of the acquisitions of Global Investment
Servicing (“GIS”) on July 1, 2010 and BHF
Asset Servicing GmbH (“BAS”) on Aug. 2,
2010 (collectively, “the Acquisitions”), and net
new business, partially offset by higher money
market fee waivers. (See the “Investment
Services business” beginning on page 21).
Investment management and performance fees
totaled $3.0 billion in 2011 compared with $2.9
billion in 2010. The increase was driven by net
new business and higher average equity markets,
largely offset by higher money market fee
waivers. (See the “Investment Management
business” beginning on page 18).

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue
totaled $848 million in 2011 compared with
$886 million in 2010. In 2011, foreign exchange
revenue totaled $761 million, a decrease of 3%
compared with 2010, driven by lower volatility,
partially offset by higher volumes. Other trading
revenue was $87 million 2011 compared with
$99 million in 2010. The decrease was primarily
driven by lower fixed income trading revenue.
(See “Fee and other revenue” beginning on
page 8).

Investment income and other revenue totaled
$455 million in 2011 compared with $467
million in 2010. The decrease primarily resulted
from lower foreign currency translation, the
write-down of an equity investment, lower lease
residual gains and lower private equity
investment revenue, primarily offset by the gain
on the sale of Shareowner Services and gains
related to loans held-for-sale retained from a
previously divested bank subsidiary. (See “Fee
and other revenue” beginning on page 8).

Net interest revenue totaled $3.0 billion in 2011
compared with $2.9 billion in 2010 and the net
interest margin (FTE) was 1.36% in 2011
compared with 1.70% in 2010. The trends of net
interest revenue and net interest margin (FTE)
primarily reflect growth in client deposits, which
were placed with central banks, purchases of
high quality securities and an increased level of
secured loans, partially offset by lower spreads
resulting from the continued impact of the lower
global interest rate environment. (See “Net
interest revenue” beginning on page 11).
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e The provision for credit losses was $1 million in
2011 compared with $11 million in 2010. The
lower provision in 2011 primarily resulted from
an improvement in the loan portfolio and a
decline in criticized assets. (See “Asset quality
and allowance for credit losses” beginning on
page 42).

e Noninterest expense totaled $11.1 billion in
2011 compared with $10.2 billion in 2010. The
increase primarily reflects the full-year impact
of the Acquisitions, higher staff expense,
volume-related expenses, and software expense,
as well as higher professional, legal and other
purchased services. Noninterest expense in 2011
also includes restructuring charges of $89
million. (See “Noninterest expense” beginning
on page 14).

e BNY Mellon recorded an income tax provision
of $1.0 billion (29.0% effective tax rate) in 2011
compared with an income tax provision, on a
continuing operations basis, of $1.0 billion
(28.3% effective tax rate) in 2010. (See “Income
taxes” on page 15).

e Unrealized net of tax gains on our total
investment securities portfolio were $420
million at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $150
million at Dec. 31, 2010. The improvement in
the valuation of the investment securities
portfolio was driven by improved valuations of
agency RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities,
partially offset by declines in valuations of
certain non-agency residential mortgage-backed
securities. (See “Investment securities”
beginning on page 36).

e AtDec. 31,2011, our estimated Basel III Tier 1
common equity ratio was 7.1% , an
improvement of more than 100 basis points from
March 31, 2011. The improvement was driven
by earnings retention, the reduction of goodwill
and intangible assets related to the sale of
Shareowner Services and paydowns on
sub-investment grade securities, partially offset
by share repurchases. (See “Capital” beginning
on page 53).

e We generated $2.8 billion of Basel I Tier 1
common equity in 2011, primarily driven by
earnings. Our Basel I Tier 1 capital ratio was
15.0% at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with 13.4% at
Dec. 31, 2010. (See “Capital” beginning on
page 53).

e In 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million common
shares in the open market, at an average price of
$24.00 per share, for a total of $835 million.

Results of 2010

In 2010, we reported net income applicable to
common shareholders, including discontinued
operations, of $2.5 billion, or $2.05 per diluted
common share, or on a continuing operations basis,
net income of $2.6 billion, or $2.11 per diluted
common share. These results were primarily driven
by:

e Investment services fee revenue totaled $6.1
billion in 2010 reflecting the Acquisitions,
higher market values and net new business.

e Investment management and performance fees
totaled $2.9 billion in 2010 reflecting higher
market values globally, the full year impact of
the acquisition of Insight Investment
Management Limited (“Insight”) and new
business.

e Foreign exchange and other trading revenue
totaled $886 million in 2010 driven by lower
fixed income and derivatives trading revenue
and lower foreign exchange revenue.

e Net interest revenue totaled $2.9 billion in 2010
as a higher yield on the restructured investment
securities portfolio and higher interest-earning
assets were offset by lower spreads.

e Noninterest expense totaled $10.2 billion in
2010 primarily driven by the impact of the
Acquisitions, the full-year impact of the Insight
acquisition and higher compensation expense.

Results for 2009

In 2009, we reported a net loss of $1.4 billion, or
$1.16 per diluted common share, or on a continuing
operations basis, a net loss of $1.1 billion, or $0.93
per diluted common share. These results were
primarily driven by:

e Investment securities (pre-tax) net losses of $5.4
billion in 2009 reflecting the restructuring of the
investment securities portfolio.

e A provision for credit losses of $332 million in
2009, reflecting a higher number of downgrades
and deterioration in certain industry sectors.

e Merger and integration (“M&I”) expenses of
$233 million (pre-tax).

e An after-tax redemption charge of $196.5
million related to the repurchase of the Series B
preferred stock issued to the U.S. Treasury as
part of the Troubled Asset Relief Program
(“TARP”) Capital Purchase Program and $86.5
million for dividends/accretion on the Series B
preferred stock.
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Results for 2009, compared with 2008, also included
lower securities servicing revenue, lower investment

Fee and other revenue

management and performance fees and lower foreign
exchange and other trading revenue.

Fee and other revenue 2011 2010
Vvs. Vs.
(dollars in millions unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Investment services fees:
Asset servicing (a) $ 3,697 $ 3,076 $ 2,573 20% 20%
Issuer services 1,445 1,460 1,463 (€)) -
Clearing services 1,159 1,005 962 15 4
Treasury services 535 530 519 1 2
Total investment services fees 6,836 6,071 5,517 13 10
Investment management and performance fees 3,002 2,868 2,677 5 7
Foreign exchange and other trading revenue 848 886 1,036 4) (14)
Distribution and servicing 187 210 326 (11) (36)
Financing-related fees 170 195 215 (13) )
Investment income 258 308 226 (16) 36
Other 197 159 111 24 43
Total fee revenue 11,498 10,697 10,108 7 6
Net securities gains (losses) 48 27 (5,369) 78 N/M
Total fee and other revenue $11,546 $10,724 $ 4,739 8% 126%
Fee revenue as a percentage of total revenue excluding net securities
gains (losses) 78% 78% 78%
Market value of AUM at period end (in billions) $ 1,260 $ 1,172 $ 1,115 8% 5%
Market value of AUC and administration at period end (in trillions) $ 258 $ 250 $ 223 3% 12%

(a) Asset servicing fees include securities lending revenue of $183 million in 2011, $150 million in 2010 and $259 million in 2009.

Fee revenue

Fee revenue increased 7% in 2011 compared with
2010, primarily reflecting the full year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher average market values and higher
net new business, partially offset by higher money
market fee waivers and lower trading volumes.

Investment services fees

Investment services fees were impacted by the
following compared with 2010:

e Asset servicing fees increased 20%, primarily
driven by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher market values, net new
business and higher securities lending revenue
due to wider spreads.

e Issuer services fees decreased 1% as higher
Depositary Receipts revenue driven by higher
corporate action fees was more than offset by
lower Corporate Trust fee revenue, reflecting
continued weakness in the structured debt
markets and lower money market-related
distribution fees, and lower Shareowner Services
revenue, reflecting lower corporate action fees.
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e C(learing services fees increased 15%, primarily
driven by the full-year impact of the GIS
acquisition, and new business, partially offset by
lower trading volumes and higher money market
fee waivers.

e Treasury services fees increased 1% compared
with 2010, reflecting the full-year impact of the
GIS acquisition, primarily offset by lower funds
transfer, cash management and liquidity
management fees.

See the “Investment Services business” in “Review of
businesses” for additional details.

Investment management and performance fees

Investment management and performance fees totaled
$3.0 billion in 2011, an increase of 5% compared with
2010. The increase reflects higher average market
values and net new business, partially offset by higher
money market fee waivers and lower performance
fees. Performance fees were $93 million in 2011 and
$121 million in 2010.

Total AUM for the Investment Management business
was $1.26 trillion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
$1.17 trillion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase was
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primarily due to net new business and improved
market values throughout 2011. Long-term inflows in
2011 were $83 billion and benefited from strength in
fixed income and equity-indexed products.

See the “Investment Management business” in
“Review of businesses” for additional details
regarding the drivers of investment management and
performance fees.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Foreign exchange $761 $787 $ 850
Fixed income 65 80 242
Credit derivatives (a) 3) @) (84)
Other 25 26 28
Total $848 $886 $1,036

(a) Used as economic hedges of loans.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue decreased
$38 million, or 4%, from $886 million in 2010. In
2011, foreign exchange revenue totaled $761 million,
a decrease of 3% compared with 2010, driven by
lower volatility and spreads, partially offset by higher
volumes. Foreign exchange revenue continues to be
impacted by increasing competitive pressures. Other
trading revenue totaled $87 million in 2011, a
decrease of 12% compared with 2010, largely due to
lower fixed income trading revenue. Foreign
exchange revenue is primarily reported in the
Investment Services business. Other trading revenue
is primarily reported in the Other segment.

The foreign exchange trading engaged in by the
Company generates revenues, which are influenced by
the volume of client transactions and the spread
realized on these transactions. The level of volume
and spreads is affected by market volatility, the level
of cross-border assets held in custody for clients, the
level and nature of underlying cross-border
investments and other transactions undertaken by
corporate and institutional clients. These revenues
also depend on our ability to manage the risk
associated with the currency transactions we execute.
A substantial majority of our foreign exchange trades
is undertaken for our custody clients in transactions
where BNY Mellon acts as principal, and not as an
agent or broker. As a principal, we earn a profit, if
any, based on our ability to risk manage the aggregate
foreign currency positions that we buy and sell on a
daily basis. Generally speaking, custody clients enter
into foreign exchange transactions in one of three

ways: negotiated trading with BNY Mellon, BNY
Mellon’s standing instruction program, or
transactions with third-party foreign exchange
providers. Negotiated trading generally refers to
orders entered by the client or the client’s investment
manager, with all decisions related to the transaction,
usually on a transaction-specific basis, made by the
client or its investment manager. Such transactions
may be initiated by (i) contacting one of our sales
desks to negotiate the rate for specific transactions,
(ii) using electronic trading platforms, or (iii) electing
other methods such as those pursuant to a
benchmarking arrangement, in which pricing is
determined by an objective market rate plus a
pre-negotiated spread. The preponderance of the
notional value of our trading volume with clients is in
negotiated trading. Our standing instruction program
provides custody clients and their investment
managers with an end-to-end solution that allows
them to shift to BNY Mellon the cost, management
and execution risk, often in small transactions not
otherwise eligible for a more favorable rate or
transactions in restricted and difficult to trade
currencies. We incur substantial costs in supporting
the global operational infrastructure required to
administer the standing instruction program; on a
per-transaction basis, the costs associated with the
standing instruction program exceed the costs
associated with negotiated trading. Our custody
clients choose to use third-party foreign exchange
providers other than BN'Y Mellon for a substantial
majority of their U.S. dollar equivalent volume
foreign exchange transactions.

We typically price negotiated trades for our custody
clients at a spread over our estimation of the current
market rate for a particular currency or based on an
agreed third-party benchmark. With respect to our
standing instruction program, we typically assign a
price derived from the daily pricing range for
marketable-size foreign exchange transactions
(generally more than $1 million) executed between
global financial institutions, known as the “interbank
range.” Using the interbank range for the given day,
we typically price purchases of currencies at or near
the low end of this range and sales of currencies at or
near the high end of this range. For the year ended
Dec. 31, 2011, our total revenue for all types of
foreign exchange trading transactions was $761
million, which is approximately 5% of our total
revenue. Approximately 40% of our foreign exchange
revenue resulted from foreign exchange transactions
undertaken through our standing instruction program.

BNY Mellon 9



Results of Operations (continued)

Distribution and servicing fees

Distribution and servicing fees earned from mutual
funds are primarily based on average assets in the
funds and the sales of funds that we manage or
administer and are primarily reported in the
Investment Management business. These fees, which
include 12b-1 fees, fluctuate with the overall level of
net sales, the relative mix of sales between share
classes, the funds’ market values and money market
fee waivers.

The $23 million decrease in distribution and servicing
fee revenue in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily
reflects increased money market fee waivers as well
as equity market changes. The impact of distribution
and servicing fees on income in any one period is
partially offset by distribution and servicing expense
paid to other financial intermediaries to cover their
costs for distribution and servicing of mutual funds.
Distribution and servicing expense is recorded as
noninterest expense on the income statement.

Financing-related fees

Financing-related fees, which are primarily reported
in the Other segment, include capital markets fees,
loan commitment fees and credit-related fees.
Financing-related fees decreased $25 million from
2010 primarily as a result of lower capital markets and
credit-related fees, primarily reflecting our strategy to
reduce targeted risk exposure.

Investment income

Investment income

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Corporate/bank-owned
life insurance $154 $150 $151
Lease residual gains 42 69 90
Equity investment income (loss) 44 51 (28)
Private equity gains (losses) 18 29 (18)
Seed capital gains - 9 31
Total investment income $258 $308 $226

Investment income, which is primarily reported in the
Other segment and Investment Management business,
includes income from insurance contracts, lease
residual gains and losses, equity investment income
(loss), private equity investments and gains and losses
on seed capital investments. The decrease, compared
with 2010, primarily reflects lower lease residual,
private equity and seed capital gains.
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Other revenue

Other revenue

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Asset-related gains $181 $ 22 $ 76
Expense reimbursements from
joint ventures 38 37 31
Economic value payments 4 7 -
Other income (loss) (26) 93 4
Total other revenue $197 $159 $111

Other revenue includes asset-related gains, expense
reimbursements from joint ventures, economic value
payments and other income (loss). Asset-related gains
include loan, real estate and other asset dispositions.
Expense reimbursements from joint ventures relate to
expenses incurred by BNY Mellon on behalf of joint
ventures. Economic value payments relate to deposits
from the GIS acquisition that have not yet transferred
to BNY Mellon. Other income (loss) primarily
includes foreign currency remeasurement, other
investments and various miscellaneous revenues.

Total other revenue increased $38 million compared
with 2010, primarily reflecting the gain on the sale of
Shareowner Services and asset-related gains on loans
held-for-sale retained from a previously divested bank
subsidiary, partially offset by net losses on foreign
currency remeasurement.

Net securities gains (losses)

Net securities gains totaled $48 million in 2011
compared with $27 million in 2010.

The following table details securities gains (losses) by
type of security. See “Consolidated balance sheet
review” for further information on the investment
securities portfolio.

Net securities gains (losses)

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
U.S. Treasury $ 77 $ 15 $ -
Agency RMBS 8 15 -
Alt-A RMBS 36) (13) (3,113)
Prime RMBS (1) - (1,008)
Subprime RMBS 21) (@) (322)
European floating rate notes 39) 3) (269)
Sovereign debt 36 - -
Home equity lines of credit - - (205)
Commercial MBS - - (89)
Grantor Trust - - 39)
Credit cards - - (26)
ABS CDOs - - (23)
Other 24 17 (275)
Total net securities gains
(losses) $ 48 $ 27 $(5,369)
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2010 compared with 2009

Fee revenue increased 6% in 2010 compared with
2009, primarily reflecting the impact of the
Acquisitions, the full-year impact of the Insight
acquisition, improved market values and new
business, partially offset by lower foreign exchange
and other trading revenue, lower distribution and
servicing fees and lower securities lending revenue.

Net securities gains totaled $27 million in 2010
compared with losses of $5.4 billion in 2009. The loss
in 2009 primarily resulted from a charge related to
restructuring the investment securities portfolio.

Fee and other revenue was also impacted by the
following:

e Investment services fees increased reflecting the
impact of the Acquisitions, higher market
values, net new business and higher Depositary
Receipts revenue resulting from higher issuance,
corporate action and service fees. This increase

Net interest revenue

was partially offset by lower Corporate Trust fee
revenue, reflecting continued weakness in the
structured debt markets and lower money market
related distribution fees, lower Shareowner
Services revenue, reflecting lower corporate
action fees, and lower securities lending revenue
resulting from narrower spreads and lower loan
balances.

e Investment management and performance fees
increased reflecting improved market values, the
Insight acquisition and the impact of net new
business.

e Foreign exchange and other trading revenue
decreased largely due to lower fixed income and
derivatives trading revenue.

e Investment income increased reflecting higher
equity investment revenue and higher private
equity gains, partially offset by lower lease
residual and seed capital gains.

e Total other revenue increased primarily
reflecting higher foreign currency
remeasurements, partially offset by lower asset-
related gains.

Net interest revenue 2011 2010
Vs. Vs.
(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Net interest revenue (non-FTE) $ 2,984 $ 2,925 $ 20915 2% -%
Tax equivalent adjustment 27 19 18 N/M N/M
Net interest revenue (FTE) — Non-GAAP 3,011 2,944 2,933 2% -%
Average interest-earning assets $222,233 $172,792 $160,955 29% 7%
Net interest margin (FTE) 1.36% 1.70% 1.82% (34)bps  (12)bps

Net interest revenue totaled $3.0 billion in 2011, a 2%
increase compared with 2010. The net interest margin
(FTE) was 1.36% in 2011 compared with 1.70% in
2010. The trends of net interest revenue and net
interest margin (FTE) primarily reflect growth in client
deposits, which were placed with central banks,
purchases of high quality securities and an increased
level of secured loans, partially offset by lower spreads
resulting from the continued impact of the lower
global interest rate environment.

Average interest-earning assets were $222 billion in
2011, compared with $173 billion in 2010. The
increase in 2011 compared with 2010 primarily
occurred in the second half of 2011 and was driven by
higher client deposits as a function of the European
debt crisis and continued economic uncertainty in the
global markets. Average total securities increased to
$74 billion in 2011, up from $61 billion in 2010,
reflecting our strategy to invest in high-quality,
government-guaranteed securities, and to a lesser
degree, state and political subdivisions and asset-

backed collateralized loan obligations (“CLOs”).
Average interest-bearing deposits with the Federal
Reserve and other central banks increased to $47
billion, up from $14 billion in 2010, reflecting higher
client deposits.

2010 compared with 2009

Net interest revenue totaled $2.9 billion in 2010,
essentially unchanged compared with 2009. Net
interest revenue in 2010 reflected a higher yield on the
restructured investment securities portfolio, net of lost
interest on the securities sold and higher average
interest-earning assets, primarily offset by narrower
spreads.

The net interest margin (FTE) was 1.70% in 2010
compared with 1.82% in 2009. The lower net interest
margin (FTE) in 2010 was driven by lower spreads
and higher interest-earning assets in a lower-rate
environment, which more than offset the higher yield
on the restructured investment securities portfolio.
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Average balances and interest rates 2011
(dollar amounts in millions, presented on an FTE basis) Average balance Interest Average rates
Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (primarily foreign banks) $ 55,218 $ 543 0.99%
Interest-bearing deposits held at the Federal Reserve and other central banks 47,104 148 0.31
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 4,809 28 0.58
Margin loans 9,576 129 1.34
Non-margin loans:
Domestic offices:
Consumer 5,666 217 3.83
Commercial 15,915 316 1.99
Foreign offices 9,762 148 1.51
Total non-margin loans 31,343 681 (a) 2.17
Securities:
U.S. government obligations 15,003 234 1.56
U.S. government agency obligations 21,684 625 2.88
State and political subdivisions — tax-exempt 1,394 59 4.25
Other securities:
Domestic offices 15,756 680 4.32
Foreign offices 17,457 414 2.37
Total other securities 33,213 1,094 3.30
Trading securities:
Domestic offices 2,856 74 2.61
Foreign offices 33 - 0.95
Total trading securities 2,889 74 2.59
Total securities 74,183 2,086 2.82
Total interest-earning assets $222,233 $ 3,615 (b) 1.63%
Allowance for loan losses (444)
Cash and due from banks 4,579
Other assets 51,398
Assets of consolidated investment management funds 13,379
Total assets $291,145
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits:
Domestic offices:
Money market rate accounts $ 4,659 $ 16 0.34%
Savings 1,525 2 0.16
Certificates of deposits of $100,000 & over 364 - 0.05
Other time deposits 34,396 29 0.08
Total domestic 40,944 47 0.11
Foreign offices:
Banks 6,910 58 0.84
Government and official institutions 2,031 1 0.05
Other 74,810 135 0.18
Total foreign 83,751 194 0.23
Total interest-bearing deposits 124,695 241 0.19
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements 8,572 2 0.02
Trading liabilities 1,852 32 1.76
Other borrowed funds:
Domestic offices 1,124 16 141
Foreign offices 906 5 0.60
Total other borrowed funds 2,030 21 1.05
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 7,319 7 0.09
Long-term debt 18,057 301 1.66
Total interest-bearing liabilities $162,525 $ 604 0.37%
Total noninterest-bearing deposits 57,984
Other liabilities 24,244
Liabilities and obligations of consolidated investment management funds 12,073
Total liabilities 256,826
Equity
Noncontrolling interests 800
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation shareholders’ equity 33,519
Total liabilities, temporary equity and permanent equity $291,145
Net interest margin 1.36%
Percentage of assets attributable to foreign offices (c) 36%
Percentage of liabilities attributable to foreign offices 33

(a) Includes fees of $39 million in 2011. Non-accrual loans are included in the average loan balance; the associated income, recognized on the cash basis, is included

in interest.

(b) The tax equivalent adjustment was $27 million in 2011, and is based on the applicable tax rate (35%).

(c) Includes the Cayman Islands branch office.

12 BNY Mellon



Results of Operations (continued)

Average balances and interest rates (continued) 2010 2009
Average Average Average Average
(dollar amounts in millions, presented on an FTE basis) balance Interest rates balance Interest rates
Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (primarily foreign banks) $ 56,679 $ 491 0.87% $ 55,797 $ 684 1.22%
Interest-bearing deposits held at the Federal Reserve and other central banks 14,253 49 0.34 11,938 43 0.36
Other short-term investments — U.S. Government-backed commercial paper - - - 317 9 2.95
Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 4,660 64 1.37 3,238 31 0.97
Margin loans 5,900 88 1.50 4,340 69 1.59
Non-margin loans:
Domestic offices:
Consumer 5,485 231 4.21 5,420 262 4.83
Commercial 15,286 356 2.33 15,056 362 2.41
Foreign offices 9,633 151 1.57 11,608 250 2.15
Total non-margin loans 30,404 738 (a) 243 32,084 874 (a) 2.72
Securities:
U.S. Government obligations 7,857 119 1.50 3,218 50 1.54
U.S. Government agency obligations 20,140 674 3.34 16,019 592 3.70
State and political subdivisions — tax exempt 627 41 6.48 680 47 6.92
Other securities:
Domestic offices 14,683 981 6.68 20,419 828 4.05
Foreign offices 14,906 173 1.16 10,912 248 2.28
Total other securities 29,589 1,154 3.90 31,331 1,076 3.43
Trading securities
Domestic offices 2,568 71 2.79 1,934 50 2.57
Foreign offices 115 - 0.26 59 1 1.40
Total trading securities 2,683 71 2.68 1,993 51 2.54
Total securities 60,896 2,059 3.38 53,241 1,816 3.41
Total interest-earning assets $172,792 $3,489 (b) 2.02% $160,955 $3,526 (b) 2.19%
Allowance for loan losses (522) (420)
Cash due from banks 3,832 3,638
Other assets 47,979 45,766
Assets of discontinued operations 404 (¢c) 2,188 (c)
Assets of consolidated investment management funds 13,355 -
Total assets $237,840 $212,127
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits — domestic offices:
Money market rate accounts (d) $ 4,463 $ 20 0.46% $ 2,603 $ 12 0.45%
Savings 1,396 4 0.26 1,136 2 0.17
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 & over 368 - 0.17 961 8 0.85
Other time deposits (d) 26,649 25 0.09 20,938 35 0.17
Total domestic 32,876 49 0.15 25,638 57 0.22
Interest-bearing deposits — foreign offices:
Banks 5,401 18 0.33 5,182 13 0.26
Government and official institutions 1,423 1 0.05 866 1 0.10
Other 64,529 63 0.10 66,520 101 0.15
Total foreign 71,353 82 0.12 72,568 115 0.16
Total interest-bearing deposits 104,229 131 0.13 98,206 172 0.17
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements 5,356 43 0.80 2,695 - -
Trading liabilities 1,630 41 2.50 1,283 22 1.76
Other borrowed funds:
Domestic offices 1,386 21 1.57 981 15 1.53
Foreign offices 677 3 0.39 593 5 0.85
Total other borrowed funds 2,063 24 1.18 1,574 20 1.27
Borrowings from the Federal Reserve related to ABCP - - - 317 7 2.25
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 6,439 6 0.09 5,263 6 0.12
Long-term debt 16,673 300 1.80 16,893 366 2.17
Total interest-bearing liabilities $136,390 $ 545 0.40% $126,231 $ 593 0.47%
Total noninterest-bearing deposits 35,208 36,446
Other liabilities 21,768 18,760
Liabilities of discontinued operations 404 (¢) 2,188 (¢)
Liabilities and obligations of consolidated investment management funds 12,218 -
Total liabilities 205,988 183,625
Equity
Noncontrolling interests 752 26
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation shareholders’ equity 31,100 28,476
Total liabilities, temporary equity and permanent equity $237,840 $212,127
Net interest margin 1.70% 1.82%
Percentage of assets attributable to foreign offices (e) 43% 37%
Percentage of liabilities attributable to foreign offices 36 34

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

Includes fees of $46 million in 2010 and $43 million in 2009. Non-accrual loans are included in the average loan balance; the associated income, recognized on

the cash basis, is included in interest.

The tax equivalent adjustment was $19 million in 2010 and $18 million in 2009, and is based on the applicable tax rate (35%).

Average balances and rates are impacted by allocations made to match assets of discontinued operations with liabilities of discontinued operations.

In 2011, certain money market rate accounts were reclassified to other time deposits. All prior periods have been restated.

Includes the Cayman Islands branch office.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Noninterest expense

Noninterest expense 2011 2010
Vvs. Vs.
(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Staff:
Compensation $ 3,567 $ 3,237 $ 2,985 10% 8%
Incentives 1,262 1,193 996 6 20
Employee benefits 897 785 719 14 9
Total staff 5,726 5,215 4,700 10 11
Professional, legal and other purchased services 1,217 1,099 1,017 11 8
Net occupancy 624 588 564 6 4
Software 485 410 367 18 12
Distribution and servicing 416 377 393 10 4)
Furniture and equipment 330 315 309 5 2
Sub-custodian 298 247 203 21 22
Business development 261 271 214 (@) 27
Other 1,147 1,060 954 8 11
Subtotal 10,504 9,582 8,721 10 10
Amortization of intangible assets 428 421 426 2 (1)
Restructuring charges 89 28 150 218 (81)
Merger and integration (“M&I”) expenses 91 139 233 35) (40)
Total noninterest expense $11,112 $10,170 $ 9,530 9% 7%
Total staff expense as a percentage of total revenue 39% 38% 61% (a)
Full-time employees at period end 48,700 48,000 42,200 1% 14%

(a) Excluding investment securities gains (losses), total staff expense as a percentage of total revenue (Non-GAAP) was 36% in 2009.

Total noninterest expense increased $942 million, or
9%, compared with 2010 primarily reflecting the full-
year impact of the Acquisitions, which impacted
nearly all expense categories and accounted for nearly
50% of the increase year-over-year. The increase in
noninterest expense also reflects higher staff expense,
volume-related expenses and software expense, as
well as higher professional, legal and other purchased
services.

Staff expense

Given our mix of fee-based businesses, which are
staffed with high-quality professionals, staff expense
comprised 55% of total noninterest expense in 2011
and 54% in 2010, excluding amortization of intangible
assets, restructuring charges and M&I expenses.

Staff expense is comprised of:

e compensation expense, which includes:
— salary expense, primarily driven by
headcount;
— the cost of temporary services and overtime;
and
— severance expense;
e incentive expense, which includes:
— additional compensation earned under a wide
range of sales commission and incentive
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plans designed to reward a combination of
individual, business unit and corporate
performance goals; as well as,
— stock-based compensation expense; and
e cmployee benefit expense, primarily medical
benefits, payroll taxes, pension and other
retirement benefits.

The increase in staff expense compared with 2010
primarily reflects:

e the full-year impact of the Acquisitions;

e the annual employee merit increase effective in
the second quarter of 2011;

e higher pension expense;

higher incentives; and

e a $22 million charge as a result of a change in
executive management.

Non-staff expense

Non-staff expense includes certain expenses that vary
with the levels of business activity and levels of
expensed business investments, fixed infrastructure
costs and expenses associated with corporate activities
related to technology, compliance, legal, litigation,
productivity initiatives and business development.



Results of Operations (continued)

Non-staff expense, excluding amortization of
intangible assets, restructuring charges and M&lI
expenses, totaled $4.8 billion in 2011 compared with
$4.4 billion in 2010. The increase primarily reflects:

e the full-year impact of the Acquisitions;

e higher volume-related expenses;

e higher software expense resulting from new
assets placed into service; and,

e higher legal costs.

These increases were partially offset by state
investment tax credits received in 2011.

Pre-tax restructuring charges of $89 million in 2011
primarily related to efficiency initiatives to transform
operations, technology and corporate services. The
efficiency initiatives are expected to produce
annualized pre-tax savings of $240 — $260 million in
2012. For additional information on restructuring
charges, see Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In 2011, we incurred $91 million of M&I expenses
primarily related to the integration of the Acquisitions.

The financial services industry has seen a continuing
increase in the level of litigation activity. As a result,
we anticipate our legal and litigation costs to continue
at elevated levels. For additional information on
litigation matters, see Note 24 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

2010 compared with 2009

Total noninterest expense was $10.2 billion in 2010,
an increase of $0.6 billion or 7% compared with 2009.
The increase primarily reflects the impact of the
Acquisitions and the full-year impact of the Insight
acquisition, both of which impacted nearly all expense
categories and higher litigation expense. Noninterest
expense in 2010 also included M&I expenses of $139
million related to the Acquisitions and the 2007
Merger.

Income taxes

BNY Mellon recorded an income tax provision of
$1.0 billion (29.0% effective tax rate) in 2011
compared with an income tax provision, on a
continuing operations basis, of $1.0 billion (28.3%
effective tax rate) in 2010 and an income tax benefit,
on a continuing operations basis, of $1.4 billion
(63.2% effective tax rate) in 2009. Excluding the
impact of investment securities losses, M&I expenses,
restructuring charges and benefits from discrete tax
items, the effective tax rate for 2009 was 29.7%.

We expect the effective tax rate to be approximately
29-30% in the first quarter of 2012.

Review of businesses

We have an internal information system that produces
performance data along product and service lines for
our two principal businesses and the Other segment.

Organization of our business

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon realigned its
internal reporting structure and business presentation
to focus on its two principal businesses, Investment
Management and Investment Services. See “General —
Organization of our business” for additional
information. All prior periods presented in this Annual
Report are presented accordingly.

Also in the first quarter of 2011, we revised the net
interest revenue for our businesses to reflect a new
approach which adjusts our transfer pricing
methodology to better reflect the value of certain
domestic deposits. All prior period business results
have been restated to reflect this revision. This
revision did not impact the consolidated results.

For information on the accounting principles of our
businesses, the primary types of revenue generated by
each business and how our businesses are presented
and analyzed, see Note 26 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Information on our businesses is reported on a
continuing operations basis for 2010 and 2009. See
Note 4 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion of discontinued
operations.

The results of our businesses may be influenced by
client activities that vary by quarter. In the second
quarter, we typically experience an increase in
securities lending fees due to an increase in demand to
borrow securities outside of the United States. In the
third quarter, depositary receipts revenue is typically
higher due to an increased level of client dividend
payments paid in the quarter. Also in the third quarter,
volume-related fees may decline due to reduced client
activity. In our Investment Management business,
performance fees are typically higher in the fourth
quarter, as the fourth quarter represents the end of the
measurement period for many of the performance fee
eligible relationships.

The results of our businesses in 2011 were driven by
the following factors. The Investment Management
business benefited from higher average equity markets
and net new business partially offset by higher money
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Results of Operations (continued)

market fee waivers and lower performance fees.
Results in the Investment Services business benefited

Net interest revenue was impacted by growth in client
deposits and loans, partially offset by lower spreads

from the full-year impact of the Acquisitions, net new
business, higher Depositary Receipts revenue, the
pre-tax gain on the sale of the Shareowner Services
business and an increased level of secured loans,
partially offset by lower foreign exchange fee
revenue, higher money market fee waivers and lower
trading volumes. NYSE and NASDAQ share volumes
decreased 10% in 2011 compared with 2010.

Net securities gains (losses) and restructuring charges
are recorded in the Other segment. In addition, M&I
expenses are a corporate level item and are therefore
recorded in the Other segment.

resulting from the continued impact of the low interest
rate environment.

Noninterest expense increased compared to 2010
reflecting the full-year impact of the Acquisitions,
restructuring charges related to efficiency initiatives to
transform operations, technology and corporate
services, higher volume-related expenses and higher
software costs.

The following table presents the value of certain
market indices at period end and on an average basis.

Market indices Increase/(Decrease)

2011 2010 2009 2011 vs. 2010 2010 vs. 2009
S&P 500 Index (a) 1258 1258 1115 -% 13%
S&P 500 Index — daily average 1268 1140 948 11 20
FTSE 100 Index (a) 5572 5900 5413 6) 9
FTSE 100 Index — daily average 5682 5468 4568 4 20
Barclay’s Capital Aggregate Bonds™ Index (a) 347 323 301 7 7
MSCI Emerging Markets (EM) IMI Index (a) 904 1151 981 (21) 17
NYSE and NASDAQ Share Volume (in billions) 893 997 1113 (10) (10)

(a) Period end.

The period end S&P 500 Index at Dec. 31, 2011 was
unchanged versus Dec. 31, 2010. The period end
FTSE 100 Index decreased 6% at Dec. 31, 2011
versus Dec. 31, 2010. On a daily average basis, the

markets, we estimate that a 100-point change in the
value of the S&P 500 Index, sustained for one year,
would impact fee revenue by approximately 1% and
fully diluted earnings per common share by $0.03 to

S&P 500 Index increased 11% and the FTSE 100
Index increased 4% in 2011 versus 2010.

Fee revenue in Investment Management, and to a
lesser extent Investment Services, is impacted by the
value of market indices. At Dec. 31, 2011, using the

$0.05. If global equity markets over- or under-perform
the S&P 500 Index, the impact to fee revenue and
earnings per share could be different.

The following consolidating schedules show the
contribution of our businesses to our overall

S&P 500 Index as a proxy for the global equity profitability.
For the year ended Dec. 31, 2011 Investment  Investment
(dollar amounts in millions) Management Services Other Consolidated
Fee and other revenue $3264(a) $ 7957 $ 475 $ 11,696 (a)
Net interest revenue 206 2,635 143 2,984
Total revenue 3,470 10,592 618 14,680
Provision for credit losses 1 - - 1
Noninterest expense 2,746 7,478 888 11,112
Income (loss) before taxes $ 723(a) $ 3,114 $ (270) $ 3,567 (a)
Pre-tax operating margin (b) 21% 29% N/M 24%
Average assets $37,043 $207,454 $46,648 $291,145
Excluding amortization of intangible assets:
Noninterest expense $ 2,532 $ 7266 $ 886 $ 10,684
Income (loss) before taxes 937 3,326 (268) 3,995 (a)
Pre-tax operating margin (b) 27% 31% NM 27%

(a) Total fee and other revenue includes income from consolidated investment management funds of $200 million, net of noncontrolling
interests of $50 million, for a net impact of $150 million. Income before taxes includes noncontrolling interests of $50 million.

(b) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.
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For the year ended Dec. 31, 2010

(dollar amounts in millions)

Investment Investment

Management Services

Total
continuing
Other operations

Fee and other revenue

$ 3234(a) $ 7,179

$ 478 $ 10,891 (a)

Net interest revenue 205 2,448 272 2,925
Total revenue 3,439 9,627 750 13,816
Provision for credit losses 3 - 8 11
Noninterest expense 2,693 6,515 962 10,170
Income (loss) before taxes $ 743(a) $ 3,112 $ (2200 $ 3,635(a)
Pre-tax operating margin (b) 22% 32% N/M 26%

Average assets

$35,411 $161,605

$40,420  $237,436 (c)

Excluding amortization of intangible assets:
Noninterest expense
Income (loss) before taxes
Pre-tax operating margin (b)

$ 2,456 $ 6,333
980 3,294

28% 34%

$ 960 $ 9,749
(218) 4,056 (a)
N/M 29%

(a) Total fee and other revenue includes income from consolidated investment management funds of $226 million, net of noncontrolling
interests of $59 million, for a net impact of $167 million. Income before taxes includes noncontrolling interests of $59 million.

(b) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.

(¢) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $404 million in 2010, consolidated average assets were $237,840 million.

For the year ended Dec. 31, 2009

(dollar amounts in millions)

Investment  Investment

Management Services

Total
continuing
Other  operations

Fee and other revenue

$ 2,825 $ 6,887

$(4973) $ 4,739

Net interest revenue 242 2,349 324 2,915
Total revenue 3,067 9,236 (4,649) 7,654
Provision for credit losses 1 - 331 332
Noninterest expense 2,499 5,901 1,130 9,530
Income (loss) before taxes $ 567 $ 3,335 $(6,1100 $ (2,208)
Pre-tax operating margin (a) 18% 36% N/M N/M

Average assets

$21,840 $151,001

$37,098  $209,939 (b)

Excluding amortization of intangible assets:
Noninterest expense
Income (loss) before taxes
Pre-tax operating margin (a)

$ 2,235 $ 5,740
831 3,496

27% 38%

$ 1,129 $ 9,104
6,109)  (1,782)
N/M N/M

(a) Income before taxes divided by total revenue.

(b) Including average assets of discontinued operations of $2,188 million in 2009, consolidated average assets were $212,127 million.
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Results of Operations (continued)

Investment Management business

2011 2010
(dollar amounts in millions, VS. VS.
unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue:
Investment management and performance fees:
Mutual funds $ 1,073  $1,066  $1,098 1% 3)%
Institutional clients 1,248 1,141 847 9 35
Wealth management 638 623 596 2 5
Performance fees 93 123 93 (24) 32
Total investment management and performance fees 3,052 2,953 2,634 3 12
Distribution and servicing 181 201 279 (10) (28)
Other (a) 31 80 (88) (61) N/M
Total fee and other revenue (a) 3,264 3,234 2,825 1 14
Net interest revenue 206 205 242 - (15)
Total revenue 3,470 3,439 3,067 1 12
Provision for credit losses 1 3 1 N/M N/M
Noninterest expense (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 2,532 2,456 2,235 3 10
Income before taxes (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 937 980 831 “4) 18
Amortization of intangible assets 214 237 264 (10) (10)
Income before taxes $ 723 $ 743 $ 567 3)% 31%
Pre-tax operating margin 21% 22% 18%
Pre-tax operating margin (ex. amortization of intangible assets and net of distribution
and servicing expense) (b) 31% 32% 31%
Wealth management:
Average loans $ 6,970  $6,461 $5,821 8% 11%
Average deposits $10,113  $8,240  $6,788 23%  21%

(a) Total fee and other revenue includes the impact of the consolidated investment management funds. See “Supplemental Information”
beginning on page 66. Additionally, other revenue includes asset servicing, clearing services and treasury services revenue.
(b) Distribution and servicing expense is netted with the distribution and servicing revenue for the purpose of this calculation of pre-tax
operating margin. Distribution and servicing expense totaled $412 million, $376 million and $393 million, respectively.

AUM trends (a)
(in billions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
AUM at period end, by product type:
Equity securities $ 390 $ 379 $ 337 $ 270 $ 460
Money market 328 332 357 402 296
Fixed income securities 437 342 302 168 218
Alternative investments and overlay 105 119 119 88 147
Total AUM $1,260  $1,172  $1,115 $ 928  $1,121
AUM at period end, by client type:
Institutional $ 757 $ 639 $ 611 $ 445 $ 671
Mutual funds 427 454 416 400 349
Private client 76 79 88 83 101
Total AUM $1,260  $1,172  $1,115  $ 928  $1,121
Changes in market value of AUM in the Investment Management business:
Beginning balance market value of AUM $1,172  $1,115 $ 928 $1,121 $ 142
Net inflows (outflows):
Long-term 83 48 (6) (43) (15)
Money market (14) (18) 49) 92 70
Total net inflows (outflows) 69 30 (55) 49 55
Net market/currency impact 19 27 95 (235) 5)
Acquisitions/divestitures - - 147 @) 929
Ending balance market value of AUM $1,260  $1,172  $1,115 $ 928  $1,121

(a) Excludes securities lending cash management assets.
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Business description

Our Investment Management business is comprised of
our affiliated investment management boutiques and
wealth management business.

Our Investment Management business is responsible,
through various subsidiaries, for U.S. and non-U.S.
retail, intermediary and institutional investment
management, distribution and related services. The
investment management boutiques offer a broad range
of equity, fixed income, cash and alternative/overlay
products. In addition to the investment subsidiaries,
this business includes BNY Mellon Asset
Management International, which is responsible for
the investment management and distribution of
non-U.S. products, and the Dreyfus Corporation and
its affiliates, which are responsible for U.S.
investment management and distribution of retail
mutual funds, separate accounts and annuities. We are
one of the world’s largest asset managers with a
top-10 position in both the United States and Europe
and 11th position globally.

Through BNY Mellon Wealth Management, we offer
a full array of investment management, wealth and
estate planning and private banking solutions to help
clients protect, grow and transfer their wealth through
an extensive network of offices in the U.S., Canada,
UK and Asia. Clients include high-net-worth
individuals and families, charitable gift programs,
endowments and foundations and related entities.
BNY Mellon Wealth Management is ranked as the
nation’s seventh largest wealth manager and third
largest private bank.

The results of the Investment Management business
are driven by the period-end, average level and mix of
assets managed and the level of activity in client
accounts. The overall level of AUM for a given period
is determined by:

e the beginning level of AUM;

e the net flows of new assets during the period
resulting from new business wins and existing
client enrichments, reduced by the loss of clients
and withdrawals; and

e the impact of market price appreciation or
depreciation, the impact of any acquisitions or
divestitures and foreign exchange rates.

The mix of AUM is determined principally by client
asset allocation decisions among equities, fixed
income, alternative investments and overlay, and
money market products.

Managed equity assets typically generate higher
percentage fees than money market and fixed-income
assets. Also, actively managed assets typically
generate higher management fees than indexed or
passively managed assets of the same type.

Management fees are typically subject to fee
schedules based on the overall level of assets managed
for a single client or by individual asset class and
style. This is most prevalent for institutional assets
where amounts we manage for individual clients are
typically large.

A key driver of organic growth in investment
management and performance fees is the amount of
net new AUM flows. Overall market conditions are
also key drivers, with a significant long-term
economic driver being the growth of global financial
assets.

Performance fees are generally calculated as a
percentage of a portfolio’s performance in excess of a
benchmark index or a peer group’s performance.

Results for this business are also impacted by sales of
fee-based products. Net interest revenue is determined
by loan and deposit volumes and the interest rate
spread between customer rates and internal funds
transfer rates on loans and deposits. Expenses in this
business are mainly driven by staffing costs,
incentives and distribution and servicing expense.

Review of financial results

Investment management and performance fees are
dependent on the overall level and mix of AUM and
the management fees expressed in basis points (one-
hundredth of one percent) charged for managing those
assets. Assets under management were $1.26 trillion
at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with $1.17 trillion at

Dec. 31, 2010, an increase of 8%. The increase
primarily reflects net new business and higher market
values, offset in part by short-term outflows.

Net long-term inflows were $83 billion and benefited
from strength in fixed income and equity-indexed
products. Net short-term outflows were $14 billion in
2011.

Revenue generated in the Investment Management
business includes 42% from non-U.S. sources in 2011
compared with 40% in 2010.

In 2011, Investment Management had pre-tax income
of $723 million compared with $743 million in 2010.
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Excluding amortization of intangible assets, pre-tax
income was $937 million in 2011 compared with $980
million in 2010. Investment Management results for
2011 reflect the impact of net new business in the
investment management boutiques and the wealth
management business, the adverse impact of the low
interest rate environment, and lower performance fees.

Investment management and performance fees in the
Investment Management business were $3.1 billion in
2011 compared with $3.0 billion in 2010. The
increase was driven by net new business and higher
average equity markets, largely offset by higher
money market fee waivers and lower non-U.S.
markets and performance fees.

In 2011, 35% of investment management and
performance fees were generated from managed
mutual fund fees. These fees are based on the daily
average net assets of each fund and the management
fee paid by that fund. Managed mutual fund fee
revenue was $1.1 billion in both 2011 and 2010.
Managed mutual fund fees were impacted by net new
business and higher average equity markets in the
U.S., primarily offset by higher money market fee
waivers.

Distribution and servicing fees were $181 million in
2011 compared with $201 million in 2010. The
decrease primarily reflects higher money market fee
waivers.

Other fee revenue was $31 million in 2011 compared
with $80 million in 2010. The decrease primarily
resulted from a $30 million write-down of an equity
investment, mark-to-market seed capital losses and
lower securities gains.

20 BNY Mellon

Net interest revenue was $206 million in 2011,
compared with $205 million in 2010. The increase
primarily resulted from higher average deposits and
loans, largely offset by the impact of low interest
rates. Average deposits increased 23% in 2011
compared with 2010 while average loans increased
8% in 2011 compared with 2010.

Noninterest expense excluding amortization of
intangible assets was $2.53 billion in 2011 and $2.46
billion in 2010. The increase was primarily driven by
higher distribution and servicing and staff expenses,
primarily resulting from net new business.

2010 compared with 2009

Income before taxes was $743 million in 2010,
compared with $567 million in 2009. Income before
taxes excluding amortization of intangible assets and
support agreement charges was $980 million in 2010
compared with $831 million in 2009. Fee and other
revenue increased $409 million, primarily reflecting
improved market values, the full-year impact of the
Insight acquisition, higher performance fees, net new
business and a higher value of seed capital
investments. Investment management results also
include $12 million of securities gains in 2010 and
$76 million of securities losses in 2009. The increase
in fee and other revenue was partially offset by higher
fee waivers and short-term outflows. Noninterest
expense (excluding amortization of intangible assets)
increased $221 million in 2010 compared with 2009
primarily due to higher incentives expense resulting
from an increase in performance fees, as well as the
impact of adjusting compensation to market levels,
and the full-year impact of the Insight acquisition.
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Investment Services business

2011 2010
(dollar amounts in millions, VS. VS.
unless otherwise noted) 2011 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenue:
Investment services fees:
Asset servicing $ 3586 $ 2954 $ 2461 21% 20%
Issuer services 1,446 1,460 1,463 (€} -
Clearing services 1,149 993 948 16 5
Treasury services 532 526 515 1 2
Total investment services fees 6,713 5,933 5,387 13 10
Foreign exchange and other trading revenue 840 882 1,059 (5) 17)
Other (a) 404 364 441 11 (17)
Total fee and other revenue (a) 7,957 7,179 6,887 11 4
Net interest revenue 2,635 2,448 2,349 8 4
Total revenue 10,592 9,627 9,236 10 4
Noninterest expense (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 7,266 6,333 5,740 15 10
Income before taxes (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 3,326 3,294 3,496 1 6)
Amortization of intangible assets 212 182 161 16 13
Income before taxes $ 3114 $ 3,112 $ 37335 -% (7%
Pre-tax operating margin 29% 32% 36%
Pre-tax operating margin (ex. amortization of intangible assets) 31% 34% 38%
Investment services fees as a percentage of noninterest expense () 95% 94% 93%
Securities lending revenue $ 146 $ 107 $ 222 36% (52)%
Metrics:
Average loans $ 23298 $ 17,096 $ 13,754 36% 24%
Average deposits 168,115 127,066 120,494 32 5
Asset servicing:
New business wins (AUC) (in billions) $ 1219 $ 1450 $ 1,197
Corporate Trust:
Total debt serviced (in trillions) $ 11.8 $ 120 $ 120 2)% -%
Number of deals administered 133,850 138,067 142,442 3)% 3)%
Depositary Receipts:
Number of sponsored programs 1,389 1,359 1,330 2% 2%
Clearing services:
DARTS volume (in thousands) 197.5 183.3 223.0 8% (18)%
Average active clearing accounts (in thousands) 5,427 4,901 4,995 11% 2)%
Average long-term mutual fund assets (U.S. platform) (in millions) $292,252  $240,396  $190,524 22% 26%
Average margin loans (in millions) $ 7,347 $ 5,891 $ 4,326 25% 36%
Broker-Dealer:
Average collateral management balances (in billions) $ 1,865 $ 1,647 $ 1,559 13% 6%
Treasury services:
Global payments transaction volume (in thousands) 43,649 42,733 42,252 2% 1%
(a) Total fee and other revenue includes investment management fees and distribution and servicing revenue.
(b) Noninterest expense excludes amortization of intangible assets, support agreement charges and litigation expense.
Assets under custody and administration trend
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Market value of AUC at period end (in trillions) (a) $25.8 $25.0 $22.3  $20.2  $23.1
Market value of securities on loan at period end (in billions) (b) $269 $278 $247 $326 $633

(a) Includes the assets under custody or administration of CIBC Mellon Global Securities Services Company, a joint venture with the

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, of $1.1 trillion at both Dec. 31, 2011 and Dec. 31, 2010, $905 billion at Dec. 31, 2009, $697

billion at Dec. 31, 2008, and $989 billion at Dec. 31, 2007.

(b) Represents the total amount of securities on loan, both cash and non-cash, managed by the Investment Services business.

BNY Mellon
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Business description

Our Investment Services business provides global
custody and related services, broker-dealer services,
alternative investment services, corporate trust and
depositary receipt, as well as clearing services and
global payment/working capital solutions to
institutional clients.

Our comprehensive suite of financial solutions
includes: global custody, global fund services,
securities lending, investment manager outsourcing,
performance and risk analytics, alternative investment
services, securities clearance, collateral management,
corporate trust, American and global depositary
receipt programs, cash management solutions,
payment services, liquidity services and other
revenues, principally foreign exchange, global
clearing and execution, managed account services and
global prime brokerage solutions. Our clients include
corporations, public funds and government agencies,
foundations and endowments; global financial
institutions including banks, broker-dealers, asset
managers, insurance companies and central banks;
financial intermediaries and independent registered
investment advisors and hedge fund managers. We
help our clients service their financial assets through a
network of offices and operations centers in 36
countries across six continents.

The results of this business are driven by a number of
factors which include: the level of transaction activity;
the range of services provided, including custody,
accounting, fund administration, daily valuations,
performance measurement and risk analytics,
securities lending, and investment manager back-
office outsourcing; and the market value of assets
under administration and custody. Market interest
rates impact both securities lending revenue and the
earnings on client deposit balances. Business expenses
are driven by staff, technology investment, equipment
and space required to support the services provided by
the business and the cost of execution and clearance
and custody of securities.

We are one of the leading global securities servicing
providers with a total of $25.8 trillion of assets under
custody and administration at Dec. 31, 2011.

We are the largest custodian for U.S. corporate and
public pension plans and we service 44% of the top 50
endowments. We are a leading custodian in the UK
and service 25% of UK pensions. European asset
servicing continues to grow across all products,
reflecting significant cross-border investment and
capital flows.
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We are one of the largest providers of fund services in
the world, servicing over $6.5 trillion in assets. We
are the third largest fund administrator in the
alternative investment services industry and service
44% of the funds in the U.S. exchange-traded funds
marketplace.

BNY Mellon is a leader in both global securities and
U.S. Government securities clearance. We clear and
settle equity and fixed income transactions in over 100
markets and handle most of the transactions cleared
through the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for 17
of the 21 primary dealers. We are an industry leader in
collateral management, servicing $1.8 trillion as a
clearing bank in tri-party balances worldwide at

Dec. 31, 2011.

In connection with our role as a clearing and custody
bank for the tri-party repurchase (“repo”) transaction
market, we work with dealers who use repos to
finance their securities by selling them to
counterparties, agreeing to buy them back at a later
date. In tri-party repos, a clearing and custody bank
such as The Bank of New York Mellon acts as the
intermediary between a dealer and its counterparty in
settling the transaction and providing mark-to-market
and other services.

In securities lending, we are one of the largest lenders
of U.S. Treasury securities and depositary receipts and
service a lending pool of more than $3.0 trillion in 31
markets. We are one of the largest global providers of
performance and risk analytics, with $9.7 trillion in
assets under measurement.

BNY Mellon is the leading provider of corporate trust
services for all major conventional and structured
finance debt categories, and a leading provider of
specialty services. We service $11.8 trillion in
outstanding debt from 61 locations in 20 countries.

We serve as depositary for 1,389 sponsored American
and global depositary receipt programs at Dec. 31,
2011, acting in partnership with leading companies
from 65 countries — a 62% global market share.

With a network of more than 2,000 correspondent
financial institutions, we help clients in their efforts to
optimize cash flow, manage liquidity and make
payments more efficiently around the world in more
than 100 currencies. We are the fourth largest Fedwire
and CHIPS payment processor, processing about
170,000 global payments daily totaling an average of
$1.5 trillion.

Pershing, our clearing service, takes a consultative
approach, working with more than 1,500 financial
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organizations and 100,000 investment professionals
who collectively represent more than five and a half
million individual and institutional investors by
delivering dependable operational support; robust
trading services; flexible technology; an expansive
array of investment solutions, including managed
accounts, mutual funds and cash management;
practice management support and service excellence.

Sale of Shareowner Services

On Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon sold its Shareowner
Services business. See “Key 2011 events” for
additional information.

Role of BNY Mellon, as a trustee, for mortgage-
backed securitizations

BNY Mellon acts as trustee and document custodian
for certain mortgage-backed security (“MBS”)
securitization trusts. The role of trustee for MBS
securitizations is limited; our primary role as trustee is
to calculate and distribute monthly bond payments to
bondholders. As a document custodian, we hold the
mortgage, note, and related documents provided to us
by the loan originator or seller and provide periodic
reporting to these parties. BNY Mellon, either as
document custodian or trustee, does not receive
mortgage underwriting files (the files that contain
information related to the creditworthiness of the
borrower). As trustee or custodian, we have no
responsibility or liability for the quality of the
portfolio; we are liable only for performance of the
limited duties as described above and set forth in the
trust document. BNY Mellon is indemnified by the
servicers or directly from trust assets under the
governing agreements. BNY Mellon may appear as
the named plaintiff in legal actions brought by
servicers in foreclosure and other related proceedings
because the trustee is the nominee owner of the
mortgage loans within the trusts.

Review of financial results

Assets under custody and administration at Dec. 31,
2011 were $25.8 trillion, an increase of 3% from
$25.0 trillion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase was
driven by net new business. Equity securities
constituted 33% and fixed-income securities
constituted 67% of the assets under custody and
administration at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with 32%
equity securities and 68% fixed income securities at
Dec. 31, 2010. Assets under custody and
administration at Dec. 31, 2011 consisted of assets
related to custody, mutual funds and corporate trust

businesses of $20.5 trillion, broker-dealer service
assets of $3.4 trillion, and all other assets of $1.9
trillion.

Income before taxes was $3.1 billion in both 2011 and
2010. Income before taxes, excluding amortization of
intangible assets, was $3.3 billion in both 2011 and
2010. Investment Services results in 2011 were
primarily impacted by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, net new business, higher money market
fee waivers, as well as higher volume-driven expenses
and expense incurred to support business growth.

Revenue generated in the Investment Services
business includes 37% from non-U.S. sources in both
2011 and 2010.

Investment services fees increased $780 million, or
13%, in 2011 compared with 2010.

e Asset servicing revenue (global custody, broker-
dealer services and alternative investment
services) was $3.6 billion in 2011 compared
with $3.0 billion in 2010. The increase was
primarily driven by the full-year impact of the
Acquisitions, higher market values of AUC, net
new business and higher securities lending
revenue due to wider spreads, partially offset by
lower volumes.

e Issuer services revenue (Corporate Trust,
Depositary Receipts and Shareowner Services)
was $1.4 billion in 2011 compared with $1.5
billion in 2010. The decrease primarily resulted
from lower revenue in our Shareowner Services
and Corporate Trust businesses, primarily offset
by higher Depositary Receipts revenue driven by
higher corporate action fees and net new
business.

e C(learing services revenue (Pershing) was $1.1
billion in 2011 compared with $1.0 billion in
2010. The increase reflects the full-year impact
of the GIS acquisition, net new business, growth
in mutual fund assets and positions and an 8%
increase in DARTS, partially offset by higher
money market fee waivers.

Foreign exchange and other trading revenue decreased
$42 million compared with 2010, primarily reflecting

lower volatility and spreads, partially offset by higher

volumes.

Net interest revenue increased $187 million compared
with 2010, primarily driven by higher average
customer deposits and loan levels, offset in part by
narrower spreads.
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Noninterest expense, excluding amortization of
intangible assets, increased $933 million compared
with 2010. The increase in expenses primarily resulted
from the full-year impact of the Acquisitions, higher
litigation and volume-driven expenses and increased
expenses in support of business growth.

2010 compared with 2009

Income before taxes was $3.1 billion in 2010,
compared with $3.3 billion in 2009. Income before
taxes, excluding amortization of intangible assets, was
$3.3 billion in 2010 compared with $3.5 billion in
2009. Fee and other revenue increased $292 million,
primarily due to the impact of the Acquisitions, higher
market values of AUC and net new business, partially
offset by lower foreign exchange trading volatility,
lower money market related distribution fees and
lower trading volumes. Net interest revenue increased
$99 million, primarily driven higher yields related to
restructured investment securities portfolio and
increased loan and deposit balances. Noninterest
expense, excluding amortization of intangible assets,
increased $593 million, primarily due to the impact of
the Acquisitions, higher volume-driven expenses and
expenses supporting business growth.

Other Segment
(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Revenue:
Fee and other revenue $ 475 $ 478 $(4,973)
Net interest revenue 143 272 324
Total revenue 618 750 (4,649)
Provision for credit losses - 8 331
Noninterest expense (ex.
amortization of intangible
assets, restructuring
charges and M&lI
expenses) 706 793 746
Income (loss) before taxes
(ex. amortization of
intangible assets,
restructuring charges
and M&I expenses) (88) 51 (5,726)
Amortization of intangible
assets 2 2 1
Restructuring charges 89 28 150
M&I expenses 91 139 233
Income (loss) before
taxes $ 2700 $ (220) $(6,110)
Average assets $46,648  $40,420  $37,098
Average deposits $ 4451 $ 4132 $ 7,370
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Business description
The Other segment primarily includes:

e credit-related services;

e the leasing portfolio;

e corporate treasury activities, including our
investment securities portfolio;

e our equity investment in Wing Hang Bank;

e 2 33.2% equity interest in ConvergEx; and

e business exits and corporate overhead.

Revenue primarily reflects:

e net interest revenue from the credit services and
lease financing portfolios;

e interest income remaining after transfer pricing
allocations;

e fee and other revenue from corporate and bank-
owned life insurance and credit-related financing
revenue; and

e gains (losses) associated with the valuation of
investment securities and other assets.

Expenses include:

e M&I expenses;

restructuring charges;

e direct expenses supporting credit-related
services, leasing, investing and funding
activities; and

e certain corporate overhead not directly
attributable to the operations of other businesses.

Equity stake in ConvergEx Group

On Dec. 23, 2011, the previously-announced
agreement to sell a majority of our equity stake in
ConvergEx Group was terminated.

Review of financial results

Income before taxes was a loss of $270 million in
2011 compared with a loss of $220 million in 2010.

Total fee and other revenue decreased $3 million in
2011 compared with 2010. The decrease primarily
reflects lower leasing gains, financing related fees,
private equity investment gains and the impact of
wider credit spreads on the CVA in 2011, partially
offset by gains related to loans held-for-sale from a
previously divested bank subsidiary
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Net interest revenue decreased $129 million in 2011
compared with 2010, primarily reflecting a reduction
in the net interest margin resulting from the continued
impact of the low interest rate environment as well as
lower average loan and lease balances resulting from
our strategy to reduce targeted risk exposure.

Noninterest expense (excluding amortization of
intangible assets, restructuring charges and M&lI
expenses) decreased $87 million in 2011 compared
with 2010. The decrease was driven by lower
litigation expense and the impact of state investment
tax credits in 2011.

2010 compared with 2009

Income before taxes was a loss of $220 million in
2010 compared with a loss of $6.1 billion in 2009.
Total fee and other revenue increased $5.5 billion,
primarily due to net securities losses related to the
restructured investment securities portfolio recorded
in 2009. Net interest revenue decreased $52 million,
primarily reflecting our strategy to reduce targeted
risk exposure. The provision for credit losses
decreased $323 million in 2010 reflecting a decline in
criticized assets and improvements in the insurance,
media and residential mortgage portfolios. Noninterest
expense excluding amortization of intangible assets,
restructuring charges and M&lI expenses increased
$47 million in 2010 compared with 2009 as a result of
higher litigation expenses, partially offset by a special
FDIC assessment recorded in 2009, as well as lower
legal costs and consulting fees. M&I expenses related
to the Acquisitions and the 2007 Merger were $139
million in 2010 compared with $233 million in 2009,
primarily related to the 2007 Merger.

International operations

Our primary international activities consist of
securities services and global payment services in our
investment services business, and asset management
in our investment management business.

Our clients include some of the world’s largest asset
managers, insurance companies, corporations,
financial intermediaries, local authorities and pension
funds. Through our global network of offices, we have
developed a deep understanding of local requirements
and cultural needs and we pride ourselves in providing
dedicated service through our multilingual sales,
marketing and client service teams.

We conduct business through subsidiaries, branches,
and representative offices in 36 countries. We have

operational centers based in Brussels, Cork, Dublin,
Navan, Wexford, Luxembourg, Singapore, Wroclaw,
throughout the United Kingdom including London,
Manchester, Brentwood, Edinburgh and Poole, and
Chennai and Pune in India.

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had approximately 9,000
employees in Europe, the Middle East and Africa
(“EMEA”), approximately 8,000 employees in the
Asia-Pacific region (“APAC”) and approximately 700
employees in other global locations, primarily Brazil.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our cross-border assets under
custody and administration were $9.7 trillion
compared with $9.2 trillion at Dec. 31, 2010. This
increase was primarily driven by net new business.

In Europe, we maintain a significant presence in the
Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities Directives (“UCITS”)
servicing field. In Ireland, BNY Mellon is the largest
administrator of third-party assets and largest provider
of trustee services. In Luxembourg, BNY Mellon is a
top 10-ranked fund administrator. We provide global
clearance services in more than 100 markets and
service $1.8 trillion in daily tri-party balances
spanning 40 markets.

The acquisition of GIS and BAS in 2010 expanded
our investment services business worldwide. GIS
enhanced our managed account platform, performance
reporting capabilities and business intelligence tools
for broker-dealer and registered investment advisor
clients. BAS offers a full range of tailored solutions
for investment companies, financial institutions and
institutional investors in Germany.

We serve as the depositary for 1,389 sponsored
American and global depositary receipt programs,
acting in partnership with leading companies from 65
countries. As the world’s leading provider of
corporate trust and agency services, BNY Mellon
services $11.8 trillion in outstanding debt from 61
locations, in 20 countries, for clients including
governments and their agencies, multi-national
corporations, financial institutions and other entities
that access the global debt markets. We leverage our
global footprint and expertise to deliver customized
and market-driven solutions across a full range of debt
issuer and related investor services.

BNY Mellon Asset Management operates on a multi-
boutique model, bringing investors the skills of our
specialist boutique asset managers, which together
manage investments spanning virtually all asset
classes.
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We are one of the largest global asset managers,
ranking 11th in the institutional marketplace and are
the 8th largest asset manager active in Europe. We are
also a market leader in the field of liability-driven
investments.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our international operations
managed 38% of BNY Mellon’s AUM, compared
with 34% at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily
resulted from net long-term inflows in fixed income
products and improved market values.

We process 170,000 global payments daily, totaling
an average of $1.5 trillion. With payment services
provided in more than 100 currencies through more
than 2,000 correspondent bank accounts worldwide,
we are a recognized leader in receivables and payables
processing.

We have over 50 years of experience providing trade
and cash services to financial institutions and central
banks outside of the U.S. In addition, we offer a broad
range of servicing and fiduciary products to financial
institutions, corporations and central banks depending
on the state of market development. In emerging
markets, we lead with global payments and issuer
services, introducing other products as the markets
mature. For more established markets, our focus is on
global, not local, investment services.

We are also a full-service global provider of foreign
exchange services, actively trading in over 80 of the
world’s currencies. We serve clients from ten trading
rooms in Europe, Asia and North America.

Our financial results, as well as our level of AUM and
AUC, are impacted by the translation of financial
results denominated in foreign currencies to the U.S.
dollar. We are primarily impacted by activities
denominated in the British pound and the Euro. If the
U.S. dollar depreciates against these currencies, the
translation impact is a higher level of fee revenue, net
interest revenue, noninterest expense and AUM and
AUC. Conversely, if the U.S. dollar appreciates, the
translated levels of fee revenue, net interest revenue,
noninterest expense and AUM and AUC will be
lower.

Foreign exchange rates for
one U.S. dollar

2011 2010 2009
Spot rate (at Dec. 31):
British pound $1.5448 $1.5545 $1.6154
Euro 1.2934 1.3373 1.4348
Yearly average rate:
British pound $1.6038  $1.5457 $1.5659
Euro 1.3921 1.3270 1.3946
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International clients accounted for 37% of revenue in
2011 compared with 36% in 2010 and 53% in 2009.
Income from international operations was $1.5 billion
in 2011 compared with income from continuing
operations of $1.5 billion in 2010 and $1.1 billion in
2009.

In 2011, revenues from EMEA were $3.8 billion,
compared with $3.5 billion in 2010 and $2.8 billion in
2009. Revenues from EMEA were up 8% for 2011
compared to 2010. The increase in 2011 primarily
reflects the full-year impact of the Acquisitions,
higher market values and net new business, partially
offset by lower volumes, lower performance fees and
a write-down of an equity investment in the fourth
quarter of 2011. Investment Services generated 72%
and Investment Management generated 28% of
EMEA revenues. Income from continuing operations
from EMEA was $867 million in 2011 compared with
$916 million in 2010 and $667 million in 2009.

Revenues from APAC were $842 million in 2011
compared with $745 million in 2010 and $669 million
in 2009. Revenues from APAC were up 13% for 2011
compared to 2010. The increase in 2011 primarily
resulted from higher net interest revenue and net new
business. Revenue from APAC in 2011 was generated
by Investment Services 67% and Investment
Management 27%. Income from continuing
operations from APAC was $325 million in 2011
compared with $295 million in 2010 and $222 million
in 2009.

Net income in EMEA reflects the same factors
affecting revenue, which were more than offset by
higher expenses, including higher risk expenses as
well as a credit loss incurred in the second quarter.
Net income in APAC was driven by the same factors
affecting revenue. For additional information
regarding our International operations, see Note 27 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exposure in Ireland, Italy, Spain and Portugal

The following table presents our on- and off-balance
sheet exposure in Ireland, Italy, Spain, and Portugal at
Dec. 31, 2011. We have provided expanded disclosure
on these countries as they have experienced particular
market focus on credit quality and are countries
experiencing economic concerns. Where appropriate,
we are offsetting the risk associated with the gross
exposure in these countries with collateral that has
been pledged, which primarily consists of cash or
marketable securities, or by transferring the risk to a
third-party guarantor in another country.
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BNY Mellon has a limited economic interest in the
performance of assets of consolidated investment
management funds, therefore they are excluded from
this presentation. The liabilities of consolidated
investment management funds represent the interest of
the note holders of the funds and are solely dependent
on the value of the assets. Any loss in the value of
assets of consolidated investment management funds
would be incurred by the fund’s note holders.

At Dec. 31, 2011, BNY Mellon had no exposure to
Greece and no sovereign exposure to the countries

disclosed below.

Our exposure to Ireland is principally related to Irish
domiciled investment funds. Servicing provided to
these funds and fund families may result in overdraft

exposure.

See “Risk management” for additional information on
how our exposures are managed.

Exposure in the table below reflects the country of operations and risk of the immediate counterparty.

On- and off-balance sheet exposure at Dec. 31, 2011

(in millions) Ireland Italy Spain  Portugal Total
On-balance sheet exposure
Gross:
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (a) $ 97 $ 24 $ 4 $- $ 125
Investment securities (primarily European Floating Rate Notes) (b) 208 155 27 - 390
Loans and leases (¢) 411 3 4 - 418
Trading assets (d) 117 53 16 3 189
Total gross on-balance sheet exposure 833 235 51 3 1,122
Less:
Collateral 102 39 7 3 151
Guarantees - 3 1 - 4
Total collateral and guarantees 102 42 8 3 155
Total net on-balance sheet exposure $ 731 $193 $43 $- $ 967
Off-balance sheet exposure
Gross:
Lending-related commitments (e) $ 273  § - $ - $- $ 273
Letters of credit (f) - 14 - 16
Total gross off-balance sheet exposure 273 14 - 289
Less:
Collateral 190 - 14 - 204
Total net off-balance sheet exposure $ 83 $ 2 $ - $- $ 85
Total exposure:
Total gross on- and off-balance sheet exposure $1,106 $237 $65 $3 $1,411
Less: Total collateral and guarantees 292 42 22 3 359
Total net on- and off-balance sheet exposure $ 814  $195 $43 $- $1,052

(a) Interest-bearing deposits with banks represent a $96 million placement with an Irish subsidiary of a UK holding company and $29

million of nostro accounts related to our custody business.

(b) Represents $364 million, fair value, of residential mortgage-backed securities, of which 97% were investment grade, $23 million, fair

value, of investment grade asset-backed CLOs, and $3 million, fair value, of money market fund investments located in Ireland.

(c) Loans and leases include $335 million of overdrafts primarily to Irish domiciled investment funds resulting from our custody business,

a $65 million commercial lease fully-collateralized by U.S. Treasuries, $15 million of financial institution loans, which were

collateralized by marketable securities and $4 million of leases to airline manufacturing companies which are under joint and several
guarantee arrangements, with guarantors outside of the Eurozone. There is no impairment associated with these loans and leases.

(d) Trading assets represent over-the-counter mark-to-market on foreign exchange receivables, net of master netting agreements. Trading
assets include $117 million of foreign exchange trading receivables due from Irish domiciled investment funds and $72 million to
financial institutions in Italy, Spain and Portugal. Cash collateral on the trading assets totaled $22 million in Ireland, $39 million in

Italy, $7 million in Spain and $3 million in Portugal.

(e) Lending-related commitments represent $100 million to an asset manager fully-collateralized by marketable securities, and $173
million to an insurance company, collateralized by $90 million of marketable securities.
(f) Represents a $14 million letter of credit extended to an insurance company in Spain fully-collateralized by marketable securities.
Exposure in Italy represents a $2 million letter of credit extended to a financial institution.
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Cross-border risk exchange rates or other factors. Cross-border
outstandings include loans, acceptances, interest-
bearing deposits with other banks, other
interest-bearing investments, and other monetary
assets which are denominated in U.S. dollars or other
non-local currency. Also included are local currency
outstandings not hedged or funded by local
borrowings.

Foreign assets are subject to general risks attendant to
the conduct of business in each foreign country,
including economic uncertainties and each foreign
government’s regulations. In addition, our foreign
assets may be affected by changes in demand or
pricing resulting from fluctuations in currency

The table below shows our cross-border outstandings for the last three years where cross-border exposure exceeds
1.00% of total assets (denoted with “*””) or 0.75% of total assets (denoted with “***),

Cross-border outstandings Banks and
other Commercial, Total
financial Public industrial cross-border
(in millions) institutions (a) sector and other outstandings (b)
2011:
Japan* $4,703 $ 15 $ 16 $4,734
Australia® 4,418 - 239 4,657
Germany* 4,062 - 464 4,526
United Kingdom* 3,369 25 713 4,107
France* 3,341 7 117 3,465
Netherlands** 2,079 - 905 (c) 2,984
2010:
Germany* $7,007 $ 15 $ 312 $7,334
France* 6,109 20 124 6,253
Netherlands* 4,338 - 1,205 (c) 5,543
Australia * 2,663 - 275 2,938
Switzerland * 2,839 - 30 2,869
Belgium* 2,411 - 184 2,595
Japan®* 2,261 - 7 2,268
United Kingdom *%* 533 - 1,411 1,944
Hong Kong ** 1,908 - 18 1,926
2009:
France* $6,519 $ 56 $1,307 $7,882
Germany* 5,325 75 156 5,556
Netherlands* 2,765 - 1,312 (¢) 4,077
Spain* 3,903 - 133 4,036
Belgium* 3,162 377 199 3,738
United Kingdom* 2,850 - 613 3,463
Japan** 1,809 - 7 1,816
Ireland** 932 1 895 (¢) 1,828

(a) Primarily short-term interest-bearing deposits with banks.
(b) Excludes assets of consolidated investment management funds.
(¢) Primarily European floating rate notes.
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Emerging markets exposure

We determine our emerging markets exposures using
the MSCI Emerging Markets (EM) IMI Index. Our
emerging markets exposures totaled $8 billion at Dec.
31, 2011 compared with $5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010.
The increase in emerging markets exposure was
primarily driven by higher short-term loans and
interest-bearing deposits with banks.

Critical accounting estimates

Our significant accounting policies are described in
Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements under “Summary of significant accounting
and reporting policies”. Our more critical accounting
estimates are those related to the allowance for loan
losses and allowance for lending-related
commitments, fair value of financial instruments and
derivatives, other-than-temporary impairment,
goodwill and other intangibles, and pension
accounting. Further information on policies related to
the allowance for loan losses and allowance for
lending-related commitments can be found under
“Summary of significant accounting and reporting
policies” in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Further information on the
valuation of derivatives and securities where quoted
market prices are not available can be found under
“Fair value measurement” in Note 22 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
information on policies related to goodwill and
intangible assets can be found in “Goodwill and
intangible assets” in Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. Additional
information on pensions can be found in “Employee
benefit plans” in Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Allowance for loan losses and allowance for
lending-related commitments

The allowance for loan losses and allowance for
lending-related commitments represents
management’s estimate of probable losses inherent in
our credit portfolio. This evaluation process is subject
to numerous estimates and judgments.

In 2011, we implemented an enhanced methodology
for determining the allowance for credit losses by
adding a qualitative allowance framework. Within this
framework, management applies judgment when
assessing internal risk factors and environmental
factors to compute an additional allowance for each
component of the loan portfolio.

The three elements of the allowance for loan losses
and the allowance for lending-related commitments
include the qualitative allowance framework. The
three elements are:

e an allowance for impaired credits of $1 million
or greater;

e an allowance for higher risk-rated credits and
pass-rated credits; and

e an allowance for residential mortgage loans.

Our lending is primarily to institutional customers. As
a result, our loans are generally larger than $1 million.
Therefore, the first element, impaired credits, is based
on individual analysis of all impaired loans of $1
million or greater. The allowance is measured by the
difference between the recorded value of impaired
loans and their impaired value. Impaired value is
either the present value of the expected future cash
flows from the borrower, the market value of the loan,
or the fair value of the collateral.

The second element, higher risk-rated credits and
pass-rated credits, is based on our probable loss
model. All borrowers are assigned to pools based on
their credit ratings. The probable loss inherent in each
loan in a pool incorporates the borrower’s credit
rating, loss given default rating and maturity. The loss
given default incorporates a recovery expectation. The
borrower’s probability of default is derived from the
associated credit rating. Borrower ratings are
reviewed at least annually and are periodically
mapped to third-party databases, including rating
agency and default and recovery databases, to ensure
ongoing consistency and validity. Higher risk-rated
credits are reviewed quarterly. Commercial loans over
$1 million are individually analyzed before being
assigned a credit rating. We also apply this technique
to our lease financing and wealth management
portfolios.

The third element, the allowance for residential
mortgage loans, is determined by segregating six
mortgage pools into delinquency periods ranging from
current through foreclosure. Each of these
delinquency periods is assigned a probability of
default. A specific loss given default based on a
combination of external loss data from third-party
databases and internal loss history is assigned for each
mortgage pool. For each pool, the inherent loss is
calculated using the above factors. The resulting
probable loss factor is applied against the loan balance
to determine the allowance held for each pool.
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The qualitative framework is used to determine an
additional allowance for each portfolio based on the
factors below:

Internal risk factors:

e Non-performing loans to total non-margin loans;

e C(riticized assets to total loans and lending-
related commitments;

e Ratings volatility;

Borrower concentration; and

e Significant concentration in high risk industry.

Environmental risk factors:

e U.S. non-investment grade default rate;
e Unemployment rate; and
e Change in real GDP.

The allocation of the prior period allowance for loan
losses and allowance for lending-related commitments
has been restated to reflect the implementation of the
qualitative allowance framework.

To the extent actual results differ from forecasts or
management’s judgment, the allowance for credit
losses may be greater or less than future charge-offs.

The credit rating assigned to each credit is a
significant variable in determining the allowance. If
each credit were rated one grade better, the allowance
would have decreased by $68 million, while if each
credit were rated one grade worse, the allowance
would have increased by $109 million. Similarly, if
the loss given default were one rating worse, the
allowance would have increased by $45 million, while
if the loss given default were one rating better, the
allowance would have decreased by $42 million. For
impaired credits, if the net carrying value of the loans
was 10% higher or lower, the allowance would have
decreased or increased by $2 million, respectively.

Fair value of financial instruments

The guidance related to Fair Value Measurement
included in Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) 820 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands
disclosures about assets and liabilities measured at fair
value. The standard also established a three-level
hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or
liability as of the measurement date.
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Fair value — Securities

Level 1 — Securities — Recent quoted prices from
exchange transactions are used for debt and equity
securities that are actively traded on exchanges and
for U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Government
securities that are actively traded in highly liquid
over-the-counter markets.

Level 2 — Securities — For securities where quotes
from recent transactions are not available for identical
securities, we determine fair value primarily based on
pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency. The pricing sources employ financial
models or obtain comparisons to similar instruments
to arrive at “consensus’ prices.

Specifically, the pricing sources obtain recent
transactions for similar types of securities (e.g.,
vintage, position in the securitization structure) and
ascertain variables such as discount rate and speed of
prepayment for the type of transaction and apply such
variables to similar types of bonds. We view these as
observable transactions in the current market place
and classify such securities as Level 2.

In addition, we have significant investments in more
actively traded agency RMBS and other types of
securities such as FDIC-insured debt and sovereign
debt. The pricing sources derive the prices for these
securities largely from quotes they obtain from three
major inter-dealer brokers. The pricing sources
receive their daily observed trade price and other
information feeds from the inter-dealer brokers.

For securities with bond insurance, the financial
strength of the insurance provider is analyzed and that
information is included in the fair value assessment
for such securities.

The pricing sources discontinue pricing any specific
security whenever they determine there is insufficient
observable data to provide a good faith opinion on
price. The pricing sources did not discontinue pricing
for any securities in our investment securities
portfolio at Dec. 31, 2011.

BNY Mellon obtains prices for its Level 1 and Level 2
securities from multiple pricing sources. We have
designed controls to develop an understanding of the
pricing sources’ securities pricing methodology and
have implemented specific internal controls over the
valuation of securities.



Results of Operations (continued)

As appropriate, we review the quality control
procedures and pricing methodologies used by the
pricing sources, including the process for obtaining
prices provided by the pricing sources, their valuation
methodology and controls for each class of security.

Prices received from pricing sources are subject to
validation checks that help determine the
completeness and accuracy of the prices. These
validation checks are reviewed by management and,
based on the results, may be subject to additional
review and investigation. We also review securities
with no price changes (stale prices) and securities with
zero or 100% values.

BNY Mellon has a surveillance process in place to
monitor the accuracy of prices provided by the pricing
sources. We utilize a hierarchy that compares security
prices obtained from multiple pricing sources against
established thresholds. Discrepancies that fall outside
of these thresholds are challenged with the pricing
services and adjusted if necessary.

If further research is required, we review and validate
these prices with the pricing sources. We also validate
prices from pricing sources by comparing prices
received to actual observed prices from actions such
as purchases and sales, when possible.

Level 3 — Securities — Where we have used our own
cash flow models and estimates to value securities, we
classify them in Level 3 of the ASC 820 hierarchy.
More than 99% of our securities are valued by pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency.
Less than 1% of our securities are priced based on
economic models and non-binding dealer quotes, and
are included in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

See Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for details of our securities by ASC 820
hierarchy level.

Fair value — Derivative financial instruments

Level 1 — Derivative financial instruments — Includes
derivative financial instruments that are actively
traded on exchanges, principally foreign exchange
futures and forward contracts.

Level 2 — Derivative financial instruments — Includes
the majority of our derivative financial instruments
priced using internally developed models that use
observable inputs for interest rates, pay-downs (both
actual and expected), foreign exchange rates, option
volatilities and other factors. The valuation process

takes into consideration factors such as counterparty
credit quality, liquidity and concentration concerns.

Level 3 — Derivative financial instruments — Certain
interest rate derivatives that are highly structured
require significant judgment and analysis to adjust the
value determined by standard pricing models. These
interest rate derivatives are included in Level 3 of the
ASC 820 hierarchy and comprise less than 1% of our
derivative financial instruments at fair value.

To test the appropriateness of the valuations, we
subject the models to review and approval by an
independent internal risk management function,
benchmark the models against similar instruments and
validate model estimates to actual cash transactions.
In addition, we perform detailed reviews and analyses
of profit and loss. Valuation adjustments are
determined and controlled by a function independent
of the area initiating the risk position. As markets and
products develop and the pricing for certain products
becomes more transparent, we refine our valuation
methods. Any changes to the valuation models are
reviewed by management to ensure the changes are
justified.

To confirm that our valuation policies are consistent
with exit prices as prescribed by ASC 820, we
reviewed our derivative valuations using recent
transactions in the marketplace, pricing services and
the results of similar types of transactions. As a result
of maximizing observable inputs as required by ASC
820, we reflect external credit ratings as well as
observable credit default swap spreads for both
ourselves as well as our counterparties when
measuring the fair value of our derivative positions.
Accordingly, the valuation of our derivative positions
is sensitive to the current changes in our own credit
spreads, as well as those of our counterparties.

For details of our derivative financial instruments by
ASC 820 hierarchy level, see Note 22 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Fair value option

ASC 825 provides the option to elect fair value as an
alternative measurement basis for selected financial
assets, financial liabilities, unrecognized firm
commitments and written loan commitments which
are not subject to fair value under other accounting
standards. Under ASC 825, fair value is used for both
the initial and subsequent measurement of the
designated assets, liabilities and commitments, with
the changes in fair value recognized in income. See
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Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional disclosure regarding the fair
value option.

Fair value — Judgments

In times of illiquid markets and financial stress, actual
prices and valuations may significantly diverge from
results predicted by models. In addition, other factors
can affect our estimate of fair value, including market
dislocations, incorrect model assumptions, and
unexpected correlations. These valuation methods
could expose us to materially different results should
the models used or underlying assumptions be
inaccurate. See “Basis of presentation” in Note 1 to
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Other-than-temporary impairment

The guidance included in ASC 320 defines the other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) model for
investments in debt securities. Under this guidance, a
debt security is considered impaired if its fair value is
less than its amortized cost basis. An OTTI is
triggered if (1) the intent is to sell the security, (2) the
security will more likely than not have to be sold
before the impairment is recovered, or (3) the
amortized cost basis is not expected to be recovered.
When an entity does not intend to sell the security
before recovery of its cost basis, it will recognize the
credit component of an OTTI of a debt security in
earnings and the remaining portion in accumulated
other comprehensive income.

The determination of whether a credit loss exists is
based on best estimates of the present value of cash
flows to be collected from the debt security.
Generally, cash flows are discounted at the effective
interest rate implicit in the debt security at the time of
acquisition. For debt securities that are beneficial
interests in securitized financial assets and are not
high credit quality, ASC 325 provides that cash flows
be discounted at the current yield used to accrete the
beneficial interest.

For each security in the investment securities portfolio
(including but not limited to those whose fair value is
less than their amortized cost basis), an extensive,
regular review is conducted to determine if an OTTI
has occurred. For example, to determine if an
unrealized loss on non-agency RMBS is other-than-
temporary, we project total estimated defaults of the
underlying assets (mortgages) and multiply that
calculated amount by an estimate of realizable value
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upon sale of these assets in the marketplace (severity)
in order to determine the projected collateral loss. We
also evaluate the current credit enhancement
underlying the bond to determine the impact on cash
flows. If we determine that a given RMBS will be
subject to a write-down or loss, we record the
expected credit loss as a charge to earnings.

During 2011, the housing market continued to remain
unstable. As a result, we adjusted our non-agency
RMBS estimated default and loss severity
assumptions to increase estimated defaults and
decreased the amount we expect to receive to cover
the value of the original loan. See Note 5 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for projected
weighted-average default rates and loss severities for
the 2007, 2006 and late-2005 non-agency RMBS and
Grantor Trust portfolios at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010. If
actual delinquencies, default rates and loss severity
assumptions worsen, we would expect additional
impairment losses to be recorded in future periods.

Net securities gains in 2011 were $48 million
compared with $27 million in 2010.

If we were to increase or decrease each of our loss
severity and projected default rates by 100 basis
points on each of the positions in our Alt-A, subprime
and prime RMBS portfolios including the securities
previously held by the Grantor Trust we established in
connection with the restructuring of our investment
securities portfolio in 2009, credit-related impairment
charges on these securities would have increased by
$10 million (pre-tax) or decreased by $9 million (pre-
tax) at Dec. 31, 2011.

Gooawill and other intangibles

We initially record all assets and liabilities acquired in
purchase acquisitions, including goodwill, indefinite-
lived intangibles and other intangibles, in accordance
with ASC 805 Business Combinations. Goodwill,
indefinite-lived intangibles and other intangibles are
subsequently accounted for in accordance with ASC
350 Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. The initial
measurement of goodwill and intangibles requires
judgment concerning estimates of the fair value of the
acquired assets and liabilities. Goodwill ($17.9 billion
at Dec. 31, 2011) and indefinite-lived intangible assets
($2.7 billion at Dec. 31, 2011) are not amortized but
subject to tests for impairment annually or more often
if events or circumstances indicate it is more likely
than not they may be impaired. Other intangible assets
are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are
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subject to impairment if events or circumstances
indicate a possible inability to realize the carrying
amount.

BNY Mellon’s three business segments include seven
reporting units for which annual goodwill impairment
testing is done in accordance with ASC 350. The
Investment Management segment is comprised of two
reporting units; the Investment Services segment is
comprised of four reporting units; and one reporting
unit is included in the Other segment.

The goodwill impairment test is performed in two
steps. The first step compares the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including goodwill. If the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill
of the reporting unit is considered not impaired.
However, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit
were to exceed its estimated fair value, a second step
would be performed that would compare the implied
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill with the
carrying amount of that goodwill. An impairment loss
would be recorded to the extent that the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. A
substantial goodwill impairment charge would not
have a significant impact on our financial condition,
but could have an adverse impact on our results of
operations. In addition, due to regulatory restrictions,
the Company’s subsidiary banks could be restricted
from distributing available cash to the Parent resulting
in the Parent needing to issue additional long-term
debt.

In the second quarter of 2011, we performed our
annual goodwill test. The estimated fair values of each
of these reporting units exceeded its carrying amount
by at least 20% at that time.

GAAP also requires that an interim test be done
whenever events or circumstances occur that may
indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of any reporting unit might be less than its
carrying value. The broad decline of stock prices
throughout the U.S. stock market in the second half of
2011 also impacted the Company’s stock price, which
declined below the Company’s net book value per
share. As a result of this sustained decline in the
second half of 2011, the Company performed an
interim goodwill test during the fourth quarter of
2011.

For this interim test, the fair value of each of the
Company’s reporting units was estimated by the

Company with the assistance of a third-party
valuation specialist. Fair value was estimated using an
income approach, based on discounted cash flows
and, where appropriate, a market approach. Since
public company multiples are on a marketable
minority interest basis, we adjusted them in the
impairment test to reflect the control rights and
privileges in arriving at a multiple that reflects an
appropriate control premium. Fair value of each of the
Company’s reporting units reflected a control
premium of 35% to 40%.

Estimated cash flows used in the income approach
were based on management’s most recent projections
available as of Oct. 31, 2011. The discount rates used
under the income approach were based on the capital
asset pricing model. The discount rate applied to
estimated cash flows ranged from 10% to 12% and
incorporated a 6% market equity risk premium,
forward assumptions for risk-free rates, and other
relevant assumptions. Estimated cash flows extend far
into the future and, by their nature, are difficult to
estimate over such an extended time-frame. Factors
that may significantly affect the estimates include,
among others, stock market price impacts affecting
the market values of assets we manage, the effects of
regulatory and legislative changes, increases to the
cost of equity, specific industry or market sector
conditions, competitive forces, customer behaviors
and attrition, changes in revenue growth trends, cost
structures and technology, and changes in interest
rates.

The market approach used by the Company was
primarily based on the “Guideline Public Company
Method”, which generally reflects publicly available
information for comparable businesses, and
incorporated earnings multiples from comparable
publicly-traded companies in industries similar to that
of the respective reporting unit. When appropriate,
comparable multiples were selected based on the
expected profitability of the reporting unit among
other factors.

The fair value of each reporting unit exceeded its
carrying value as of the date of the interim test. The
fair values of six of the Company’s reporting units
were substantially in excess of the respective
reporting unit’s carrying value. The Asset
Management reporting unit, with $7.7 billion of
allocated goodwill, which is one of the two reporting
units in the Investment Management segment,
exceeded its carrying value by approximately 10%.
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The fair value of the Asset Management reporting unit
was estimated using both an income approach and a
market approach. The Company estimated cash flows
based on a compound annual operating income
growth rate of approximately 16% through 2016 and
4.5% thereafter, discounted at 12.0%. In addition, the
fair value of this reporting unit reflected a control
premium of 35%. Fair value estimates based on the
two methods exceeded the carrying value of the
reporting unit. For this reporting unit, in the future,
small changes in the assumptions could produce a
non-cash goodwill impairment, which would have no
effect on our regulatory capital ratios. In addition to
the factors and assumptions previously discussed that
could affect all of the Company’s reporting units,
certain money market fee waiver practices and
changes in the level of assets under management
could have an effect on Asset Management broadly,
as well as the fair value of this reporting unit.

Key judgments in accounting for intangibles include
useful life and classification between goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles or other intangibles
requiring amortization.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for
impairment at least annually by comparing their fair
values, estimated using discounted cash flow analyses,
to their carrying values. Other amortizing intangible
assets ($2.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2011) are evaluated for
impairment if events and circumstances indicate a
possible impairment. Such evaluation of other
intangible assets is initially based on undiscounted
cash flow projections.

See Notes 1 and 7 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information
regarding goodwill, intangible assets and the annual
and interim impairment testing.

Pension accounting

BNY Mellon has defined benefit pension plans
covering approximately 24,500 U.S. employees and
approximately 9,700 non-U.S. employees.

BNY Mellon has two qualified and several
non-qualified defined benefit pension plans in the
U.S. and several pension plans overseas. As of Dec.
31, 2011, the U.S. plans accounted for 84% of the
projected benefit obligation. The pension expense for
BNY Mellon plans was $93 million in 2011 compared
with $47 million in 2010 and a pension credit of $17
million in 2009.
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Effective Jan. 1, 2011, the U.S. pension plan was
amended to reduce benefits earned by participants for
service after 2010, and to freeze plan participation
such that no new employees will enter the plan after
Dec. 31, 2010. This change in the pension plan
reduced pension expense by $40 million in 2011.

A net pension expense of approximately $140 million
is expected to be recorded by BNY Mellon in 2012,
assuming currency exchange rates at Dec. 31, 2011.
The expected increase in pension expense in 2012 is
primarily driven by the change in plan assumptions.

A number of key assumption and measurement date
values determine pension expense. The key elements
include the long-term rate of return on plan assets, the
discount rate, the market-related value of plan assets
and the price used to value stock in the ESOP. Since
2009, these key elements have varied as follows:

(dollars in millions,
except per share
amounts) 2012 2011 2010 2009
Domestic plans:
Long-term rate of
return on plan
assets 7.38%  7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Discount rate 4.75 5.71 6.21 6.38
Market-related
value of plan

assets (a) $3,763  $3.836  $3.861  $3,651
ESOP stock
price (a) $22.96  $29.48  $27.97  $33.12
Net U.S. pension
credit/(expense) NA $ 54 $ (15 $ 32
All other net pension
credit/(expense) N/A 39) (32) (15)
Total net pension
credit/(expense) NA $ 93 $ @7 $ 17

(a) Market-related value of plan assets and ESOP stock price
are for the beginning of the plan year. See “Summary of
significant accounting and reporting policies” in Note 1 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The discount rate for U.S. pension plans was
determined after reviewing equivalent rates obtained
by discounting the pension plans’ expected cash flows
using various high-quality, long-term corporate bond
yield curves. We also reviewed the results of several
models that matched bonds to our pension cash flows.
After reviewing the various indices and models, we
selected a discount rate of 4.75% as of Dec. 31, 2011.

The discount rates for foreign pension plans are based
on high-quality corporate bond rates in countries that
have an active corporate bond market. In those
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countries with no active corporate bond market,
discount rates are based on local government bond
rates plus a credit spread.

Our expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is
based on anticipated returns for each applicable asset
class. Anticipated returns are weighted for the
expected allocation for each asset class. Anticipated
returns are based on forecasts for prospective returns
in the equity and fixed income markets, which should
track the long-term historical returns for these
markets.

We also consider the growth outlook for U.S. and
global economies, as well as current and prospective
interest rates.

The market-related value of plan assets also
influences the level of pension expense. Differences
between expected and actual returns are recognized
over five years to compute an actuarially derived
market-related value of plan assets.

Unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized
over the future service period of active employees if
they exceed a threshold amount. BNY Mellon
currently has $1.7 billion of unrecognized losses
which are being amortized.

The annual impacts of hypothetical changes in the key
elements on pension costs are shown in the table
below.

Pension expense
(dollar amounts in
millions, except per
share amounts)

Increase in
pension expense

(Decrease) in
pension expense

Long-term rate of

return on plan assets  (100) bps  (50) bps 50 bps 100 bps
Change in pension

expense $ 44 $22 $(22) $ (44)
Discount rate (50)bps  (25)bps 25 bps 50 bps
Change in pension

expense $ 36 $17 $(16) $ (32)
Market-related value of

plan assets (20)% (10)% 10% 20%
Change in pension

expense $ 164 $ 84 $(82) $(161)
ESOP stock price $ (10) $ 5 $ 5 $ 10
Change in pension

expense $ 14 $ 7 $ (6) $ (12)

In addition to its pension plans, BNY Mellon has an
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). Benefits
payable under The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation Pension Plan are offset by the equivalent

value of benefits earned under the ESOP for

employees who participated in the legacy Retirement
Plan of The Bank of New York Company, Inc.

Consolidated balance sheet review

At Dec. 31, 2011, total assets were $325.3 billion
compared with $247.3 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The
increase in consolidated total assets primarily resulted
from growth in client deposits. Deposits totaled
$219.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, and $145.3 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. At Dec. 31, 2011, total interest-bearing
deposits were 48% of total interest-earning assets,
compared with 59% at Dec. 31, 2010. Total assets
averaged $291.1 billion in 2011, compared with
$237.8 billion in 2010. The increase in average assets
primarily reflects higher client deposit levels. Total
deposits averaged $182.7 billion in 2011 and $139.4
billion in 2010.

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had $40.8 billion of liquid funds
and $94.4 billion of cash (including $90.2 billion of
overnight deposits with the Federal Reserve and other
central banks) for a total of $135.2 billion of available
funds. This compares with available funds of $77.6
billion at Dec. 31, 2010. Our percentage of liquid
assets to total assets was 42% at Dec. 31, 2011,
compared with 31% at Dec. 31, 2010. At Dec. 31,
2011, of our $40.8 billion in liquid funds, $36.3
billion were placed in interest-bearing deposits with
large, highly-rated global financial institutions with a
weighted average life to maturity of approximately 56
days. Of the $36.3 billion, $7.5 billion was placed
with banks in the Eurozone.

Investment securities were $82.0 billion or 25% of
total assets at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $66.3
billion or 27% of total assets at Dec. 31, 2010. The
increase primarily reflects a higher level of agency
residential mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury
securities and sovereign securities, as well as an
improvement in the unrealized gain of our investment
securities portfolio.

Loans were $44.0 billion or 14% of total assets at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $37.8 billion or 15% of
total assets at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in loan
levels was primarily due to higher loans to broker-
dealers.

Long-term debt increased to $19.9 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 from $16.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, primarily
due to the issuance of $5.1 billion of senior medium-
term notes, partially offset by $1.3 billion of senior
and subordinated debt that matured in 2011 and $596
million of retail medium-term notes that were called
in 2011.
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Total shareholders’ equity applicable to BNY Mellon
was $33.4 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and $32.4 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in total shareholders’
equity primarily reflects earnings retention and an
improvement in the valuation of our investment
securities portfolio, offset in part by share
repurchases.

BNY Mellon, through its involvement in the
Government Securities Clearing Corporation
(“GSCC”), settles government securities transactions
on a net basis for payment and delivery through the
Fed wire system. As a result, at Dec. 31, 2011, the
assets and liabilities of BNY Mellon were reduced by
$98 million for the netting of repurchase agreements
and reverse repurchase agreement transactions
executed with the same counterparty under

standardized Master Repurchase Agreements. This
netting is performed in accordance with the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation
No. 41 (ASC Topic 210-20) “Offsetting of Amounts
Related to Certain Repurchase and Reverse
Repurchase Agreements.”

Investment securities

In the discussion of our investment securities
portfolio, we have included certain credit ratings
information because the information indicates the
degree of credit risk to which we are exposed, and
significant changes in ratings classifications for our
investment portfolio could indicate increased credit
risk for us and could be accompanied by a reduction
in the fair value of our investment securities portfolio.

The following table shows the distribution of our total investment securities portfolio:

Investment securities portfolio

Dec. 31, Chanéglhll Dec. 31, 2011 F;l; V(;}L(lf% Ratings

2010 ynrealized Amortized Fair amortized  Unrealized AAA/ A+/ BBB+/ BB+ and Not
(dollars in millions) Fair value  gain/(loss) cost  value cost (a) gain/(loss) AA- A- BBB- lower rated
Watch list: (b)
European floating rate notes (c¢) $ 4,636 $ 84 $ 3,372 $ 3,025 89% $(347) 1% 23% 6% -% -%
Non-agency RMBS 2,577 (59) 2,130 1,780 76 (350) 21 15 12 52 -
Other 331 (5) 246 264 34 18 3 1 22 23 51

Total Watch list (b) 7,544 20 5,748 5,069 78 (679) 50 19 8 20 3
Agency RMBS 20,157 226 26,890 27,493 102 603 100 - - - -
U.S. Treasury securities 12,635 387 17,627 17,999 102 372 100 - - - -
Sovereign debt/sovereign
guaranteed (d) 8,585 108 11,724 11,881 101 157 100 - - - -

Non-agency RMBS (e¢) 4,496 401) 3,002 3,179 64 177 1 1 2 96 -
Commercial MBS 2,281 12 2,935 3,003 105 68 84 14 2 - -
State and political subdivisions 629 62 2,787 2,806 101 19 76 19 3 - 2
Foreign covered bonds (f) 2,868 31 2,410 2,425 101 15 99 1 - - -
FDIC-insured debt 2,474 (34) 1,100 1,112 101 12 100 - - - -
CLO - (25) 1,258 1,233 98 (25) 9% 4 - - -
U.S. Government agency debt 1,005 28 932 958 103 26 100 - - - -
Credit cards 517 (1) 393 397 101 4 16 84 - - -
Other 3,178 27 4,139 4,183 101 44 58 30 4 - 8
Total investment securities $66,369 (g) $ 440 $80,945 $81,738 (g) 101% $793(g) 89% 5% 1% 5% -%

(a) Amortized cost before impairments.

(b) The “Watch list” includes those securities we view as having a higher risk of impairment charges.

(¢) Includes RMBS, commercial MBS and other securities. See page 37 for exposure by country.

(d) Primarily comprised of exposure to United Kingdom, France, Germany and Netherlands.

(e) These RMBS were included in the former Grantor Trust and were marked-to-market in 2009. We believe these RMBS would receive
higher credit ratings if these ratings incorporated, as additional credit enhancement, the difference between the written-down
amortized cost and the current face amount of each of these securities.

(f)  Primarily comprised of exposure to Germany and Canada.

(g) Includes net unrealized gains on derivatives hedging securities available-for-sale of $60 million at Dec. 31, 2010 and net unrealized

losses on derivatives hedging securities available-for-sale of $269 million at Dec. 31, 2011.
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The fair value of our investment securities portfolio
was $81.7 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
$66.4 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in the fair
value of the investment securities portfolio primarily
reflects a higher level of agency residential mortgage-
backed securities, U.S. Treasury securities and
sovereign securities, commensurate with our growth
in deposits, as well as an increase in the unrealized
gain of the securities portfolio. In 2011, we received
$1.3 billion of paydowns and sold $480 million of
sub-investment grade securities.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the total investment securities
portfolio had an unrealized pre-tax gain of $793
million compared with $353 million at Dec. 31, 2010.
The unrealized net of tax gain on our investment
securities available-for-sale portfolio included in
accumulated other comprehensive income was $417
million at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $151 million
at Dec. 31, 2010. The improvement in the valuation of
the investment securities portfolio was driven by
improved valuations of agency RMBS and U.S.
Treasury securities, partially offset by declines in
valuations of certain non-agency residential mortgage-
backed securities.

In 2009, we established a Grantor Trust in connection
with the restructuring of our investment securities
portfolio. The Grantor Trust has been dissolved. The
securities held in the former Grantor Trust are
included in our investment securities portfolio and
were marked down to approximately 60% of face
value in 2009. At Dec. 31, 2011, these securities were
trading above adjusted amortized cost with a total
unrealized pre-tax gain of $177 million compared
with $578 million at Dec. 31, 2010.

At Dec. 31, 2011, 89% of the securities in our
portfolio were rated AAA/AA-, compared with 87%
at Dec. 31, 2010.

We routinely test our investment securities for OTTL.
(See “Critical accounting estimates” for additional
disclosure regarding OTTI.)

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had $1.2 billion of accretable
discount related to the restructuring of the investment
securities portfolio. The discount related to these
transactions had a remaining average life of
approximately 3.9 years. The accretion of discount
related to these securities increases net interest
revenue and is recorded on a level yield basis. The
discount accretion totaled $391 million in 2011 and
$458 million in 2010.

Also, at Dec. 31, 2011, we had $1.7 billion of net
amortizable purchase premium relating to investment
securities with a remaining average life of
approximately 4.1 years. For these securities, the
amortization of net premium decreased net interest
revenue and is recorded on a level yield basis. We
recorded net premium amortization of $294 million in
2011 and $242 million in 2010.

The following table provides pre-tax securities gains
(losses) by type.

Net securities gains (losses)

(in millions) 2011 2010 2009
U.S. Treasury $77 $15 $ -
Agency RMBS 8 15 -
Alt-A RMBS 36) (13) (3,113)
Prime RMBS 1) - (1,008)
Subprime RMBS 21 4 (322)
European floating rate notes 39) 3) (269)
Sovereign debt 36 - -
Home equity lines of credit - - (205)
Commercial MBS - - (89)
Grantor Trust - - (39)
Credit cards - - (26)
ABS CDOs - - (23)
Other 24 17 (275)
Total net securities gains
(losses) $48  $27  $(5,369)

At Dec. 31, 2011, the investment securities portfolio
includes $95 million of assets not accruing interest.
These securities are held at market value.

The following table shows the fair value of the
European floating rate notes by geographical location
at Dec. 31, 2011. The unrealized loss on these
securities was $347 million at Dec. 31, 2011, a
decrease of 19% compared with $431 million at

Dec. 31, 2010.

European floating rate notes at Dec. 31, 2011 (a)

Total
fair
(in millions) RMBS  Other value
United Kingdom $1,225 $259 $1,484
Netherlands 751 47 798
Ireland 182 23 205
Italy 155 - 155
Luxembourg - 140 140
Australia 101 - 101
Germany - 101 101
Spain 27 - 27
France 4 10 14
Total $2,445 $580 $3,025

(a) 71% of these securities are in the AAA to AA- ratings

category.
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See Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for the detail of securities by level in the
fair value hierarchy.

Equity investments

We also have equity investments categorized as other
assets. Included in other assets are (parenthetical
amounts indicate carrying values at Dec. 31, 2011):
joint ventures and other equity investments ($1.6
billion), seed capital ($48 million), Federal Reserve
Bank stock ($429 million), private equity investments
($122 million), and tax advantaged low-income
housing investments ($477 million). For additional
information on the fair value of our private equity
investments and seed capital, see Note 22 of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Our equity investment in Wing Hang Bank Limited
(“Wing Hang”), which is located in Hong Kong, had a
fair value of $499 million (book value of $399
million) based on its share price at Dec. 31, 2011. An
agreement with certain other shareholders of Wing
Hang prohibits the sale of this interest without their
permission. In 2011, we elected to receive a stock
dividend from Wing Hang with a value of $12 million

(or 1.1 million shares). In 2010 and 2009, we received
cash dividends from Wing Hang of $6 million and $2
million, respectively.

Private equity activities consist of investments in
private equity funds, mezzanine financings, and direct
equity investments. Consistent with our policy to
focus on our core activities, we continue to reduce our
exposure to these activities. The carrying and fair
value of our private equity investments was $122
million at Dec. 31, 2011, down $21 million from $143
million at Dec. 31, 2010. At Dec. 31, 2011, private
equity investments consisted of investments in private
equity funds of $115 million, direct equity of less than
$1 million, and leveraged bond funds of $7 million.
Investment income was $18 million in 2011.

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had $22 million of unfunded
investment commitments to private equity funds. If
unused, the commitments expire between 2012 and
2015.

Commitments to private equity limited partnerships
may extend beyond the expiration period shown
above to cover certain follow-on investments, claims
and liabilities, and organizational and partnership
expenses.

Loans
Total exposure — consolidated Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
Unfunded Total Unfunded Total
(in billions) Loans commitments exposure Loans commitments exposure
Non-margin loans:
Financial institutions $11.1 $15.5 $26.6 $ 93 $15.8 $25.1
Commercial 1.3 16.3 17.6 1.6 18.8 20.4
Subtotal institutional 124 31.8 44.2 10.9 34.6 45.5
Wealth management loans and mortgages 7.3 1.5 8.8 6.5 1.8 8.3
Commercial real estate 1.5 1.5 3.0 1.6 1.6 32
Lease financing 2.6 - 2.6 3.1 0.1 32
Other residential mortgages 1.9 - 1.9 2.1 - 2.1
Overdrafts 4.8 - 4.8 6.0 - 6.0
Other 0.7 - 0.7 0.8 - 0.8
Subtotal non-margin loans 31.2 34.8 66.0 31.0 38.1 69.1
Margin loans 12.8 0.7 13.5 6.8 - 6.8
Total $44.0 $35.5 $79.5 $37.8 $38.1 $75.9

At Dec. 31, 2011, total exposures were $79.5 billion,
an increase of 5% from $75.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010.
This increase primarily reflects higher secured term
loans to broker-dealers in the margin loans portfolio
and higher other margin loans, partially offset by
lower commercial exposure, overdrafts and lease
financing exposure.
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Our financial institutions and commercial portfolios
comprise our largest concentrated risk. These
portfolios make up 56% of our total lending exposure.
Additionally, a substantial portion of our overdrafts
relate to financial institutions and commercial
customers.
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Financial institutions

The diversity of the financial institutions portfolio is shown in the following table.

Financial institutions Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
portfolio exposure Unfunded Total % Inv % due Unfunded Total
(dollar amounts in billions) Loans commitments exposure  grade <lyr Loans commitments exposure
Banks $ 63 $ 1.9 $ 8.2 82% 9% $4.2 $22 $ 64
Securities industry 3.8 2.6 6.4 95 95 39 2.3 6.2
Insurance 0.1 4.6 4.7 929 42 0.1 5.0 5.1
Asset managers 0.8 3.2 4.0 929 82 0.8 24 32
Government - 1.6 1.6 94 36 0.2 2.1 2.3
Other 0.1 1.6 1.7 98 56 0.1 1.8 1.9
Total $11.1 $15.5 $26.6 93 % 78%  $9.3 $15.8 $25.1

The financial institutions portfolio exposure was
$26.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared to

$25.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The increase primarily
reflects loans to banks.

Financial institution exposures are high quality, with
93% meeting the investment grade equivalent criteria
of our rating system at Dec. 31, 2011. These
exposures are generally short-term. Of these
exposures, 78% expire within one year, and 39%
expire within 90 days. In addition, 44% of the
financial institutions exposure is secured. For
example, securities industry and asset managers often
borrow against marketable securities held in custody.

For ratings of non-U.S. counterparties, as a
conservative measure, our internal credit rating

Commercial

classification generally caps the rating based upon the
sovereign rating of the country where the counterparty
resides regardless of the credit rating of the
counterparty or the underlying collateral.

Our exposure to banks is predominately to investment
grade counterparties in developed countries.
Non-investment grade bank exposures are short-term
in nature supporting our global trade finance and U.S.
dollar clearing businesses in developing countries.

The asset manager portfolio exposures are high
quality with 99% meeting our investment grade
equivalent ratings criteria at Dec. 31, 2011. These
exposures are generally short-term liquidity facilities
with the vast majority to regulated mutual funds.

The diversity of the commercial portfolio is shown in the following table.

Commercial portfolio exposure Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
Unfunded Total % Inv % due Unfunded Total
(dollar amounts in billions) Loans commitments exposure grade <lyr Loans commitments exposure
Manufacturing $0.3 $ 5.7 $ 6.0 91% 21%  $0.4 $59 $ 63
Energy and utilities 0.3 4.8 51 95 17 0.3 54 5.7
Services and other 0.5 4.5 5.0 91 27 0.7 5.9 6.6
Media and telecom 0.2 1.3 1.5 85 18 0.2 1.6 1.8
Total $1.3 $16.3 $17.6 91% 21% $1.6 $18.8 $20.4

The commercial portfolio exposure decreased 14% to
$17.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011, from $20.4 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010, reflecting our desire to reduce

non-strategic exposure. Our goal is to maintain a
predominantly investment grade portfolio.
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The table below summarizes the percentage of the
financial institutions and commercial exposures that
are investment grade.

Percentage of the portfolios Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31,
that are investment grade 2011 2010 2009
Financial institutions 93 % 91% 85%
Commercial 91 % 89% 80%

Our credit strategy is to focus on investment grade
names to support cross-selling opportunities, avoid
single name/industry concentrations and exit high-risk
portfolios. Each customer is assigned an internal
rating grade, which is mapped to an external rating
agency grade equivalent based upon a number of
dimensions which are continually evaluated and may
change over time. The execution of our strategy has
resulted in a higher percentage of the portfolio that is
investment grade at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with
Dec. 31 2010.

Wealth management loans and mortgages

Wealth Management loans and mortgages are
primarily composed of loans to high-net-worth
individuals, which are secured by marketable
securities and/or residential property. Wealth
management mortgages are primarily interest-only
adjustable rate mortgages with an average loan to
value ratio of 62% at origination. In the wealth
management portfolio, 1% of the mortgages were past
due at Dec. 31, 2011.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the private wealth mortgage
portfolio was comprised of the following geographic
concentrations: New York — 24%; Massachusetts —
17%:; California — 17%; Florida — 8%; and other —
34%.

Commercial real estate

Our commercial real estate facilities are focused on
experienced owners and are structured with moderate
leverage based on existing cash flows. Our
commercial real estate lending activities include both
construction facilities and medium-term loans. Our
client base consists of experienced developers and
long-term holders of real estate assets. Loans are
approved on the basis of existing or projected cash
flow, and supported by appraisals and knowledge of
local market conditions. Development loans are
structured with moderate leverage, and in most
instances, involve some level of recourse to the
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developer. Our commercial real estate exposure
totaled $3.0 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with
$3.2 billion at Dec. 31, 2010.

At Dec. 31, 2011, 58% of our commercial real estate
portfolio is secured. The secured portfolio is diverse
by project type, with 62% secured by residential
buildings, 17% secured by office buildings, 9%
secured by retail properties, and 12% secured by other
categories. Approximately 95% of the unsecured
portfolio is allocated to investment grade real estate
investment trusts (“REITs”) under revolving credit
agreements.

At Dec. 31, 2011, our commercial real estate portfolio
is comprised of the following geographic
concentrations: New York metro — 43%:; investment
grade REITs — 40%; and other — 17%.

Lease financings

The lease financing portfolio consisted of non-airline
exposures of $2.4 billion and $197 million of airline
exposures at Dec. 31, 2011. The lease financing
exposure is 89% investment grade, or investment
grade equivalent. The leasing portfolio is likely to
decline in the future if risk-adjusted returns are unable
to meet our expected returns.

At Dec. 31, 2011, the non-airline portion of the lease
financing portfolio consisted of $2.4 billion of
exposures backed by well-diversified assets, primarily
large-ticket transportation equipment. The largest
component is rail, consisting of both passenger and
freight trains. Assets are both domestic and foreign-
based, with primary concentrations in the United
States and European countries. Approximately 50% of
the non-airline portfolio is additionally secured by
highly rated securities and/or letters of credit from
investment grade issuers. Excluding airline lease
financing, counterparty rating equivalents at Dec. 31,
2011, were as follows:

1% of the counterparties are AA, or equivalent;
42% were A;

51% were BBB; and

6% were non-investment grade

At Dec. 31, 2011, our $197 million of exposure to the
airline industry consisted of $13 million of real estate
lease exposure, as well as the airline lease financing
portfolio, which included $69 million to major U.S.
carriers, $103 million to foreign airlines and $12
million to U.S. regional airlines.
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Recently, the U.S domestic airline industry has shown
significant improvement in revenues and yields.
Despite this improvement, these carriers continue to
have extremely high debt levels. Combined with their
high fixed-cost operating models, the domestic
airlines remain vulnerable. As such, we continue to
maintain a sizable allowance for loan losses against
these exposures and continue to closely monitor the
portfolio.

We utilize the lease financing portfolio as part of our
tax management strategy.

Other residential mortgages

The other residential mortgage portfolio primarily
consists of one to four family residential mortgage
loans and totaled $1.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2011.
Included in this portfolio is $596 million of mortgage
loans purchased in 2005, 2006 and the first quarter of
2007 that are predominantly prime mortgage loans,
with a small portion of Alt-A loans. As of Dec. 31,
2011, the purchased loans in this portfolio had a
weighted-average loan-to-value ratio of 76% at
origination and 28% of these loans were at least 60
days delinquent. The properties securing the prime
and Alt-A mortgage loans were located (in order of
concentration) in California, Florida, Virginia,
Maryland and the tri-state area (New York, New
Jersey and Connecticut).

To determine the projected loss on the prime and
Alt-A mortgage portfolio, we calculate the total
estimated defaults of these mortgages and multiply

that amount by an estimate of realizable value upon
sale in the marketplace (severity).

At Dec. 31, 2011, we had less than $15 million in
subprime mortgages included in the other residential
mortgage portfolio. The subprime loans were issued to
support our Community Reinvestment Act
requirements.

Overdrafts

Overdrafts primarily relate to custody and securities
clearance clients. Overdrafts occur on a daily basis in
the custody and securities clearance business and are
generally repaid within two business days.

Other loans

Other loans primarily includes loans to consumers that
are fully collateralized with equities, mutual funds and
fixed income securities, as well as bankers’
acceptances.

Margin loans

Margin loans are collateralized with marketable
securities and borrowers are required to maintain a
daily collateral margin in excess of 100% of the value
of the loan. Margin loans also include $5 billion
related to a term loan program that offers fully
collateralized loans to broker-dealers. The increase
compared with Dec. 31, 2010 was primarily driven by
the term loan program.
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Loans by product

The following table shows trends in the loans outstanding at year-end over the last five years.

Loans by product - at year end

(in millions) 2011 2010 (a) 2009 (a) 2008 2007
Domestic:
Financial institutions $ 4606 $ 4630 $5509 $5546 $ 8934
Commercial 752 1,250 2,324 5,786 5,099
Wealth Management loans and mortgages 7,342 6,506 6,162 5,333 4,521
Commercial real estate 1,449 1,592 2,044 3,081 3,019
Lease financing (b) 1,558 1,605 1,703 1,809 1,980

Other residential mortgages
Overdrafts

Other

Margin loans

1,923 2,079 2,179 2,505 3,115
2,958 4,524 3,946 4,835 4,037
623 771 407 485 363
12,760 6,810 4,657 3,977 5,210

Total domestic

33,971 29,767 28,931 33,357 36,278

Foreign:

Financial institutions 6,538 4,626 3,147 3,755 4,892
Commercial 528 345 634 573 852
Lease financings (b) 1,051 1,545 1,816 2,154 2,935
Government and official institutions - - 52 1,434 312
Other (primarily overdrafts) 1,891 1,525 2,109 2,121 5,662

Total foreign 10,008 8,041 7,758 10,037 14,653

Total loans $43,979  $37,808 $36,689 $43,394  $50,931

(a) Presented on a continuing operations basis.

(b) Net of unearned income on domestic and foreign lease financings of $1,343 million at Dec. 31, 2011, $2,036 million at Dec. 31, 2010,
$2,282 million at Dec. 31, 2009, $2,836 million at Dec. 31, 2008 and $4,050 million at Dec. 31, 2007.

Maturity of loan portfolio

The following table shows the maturity structure of
our loan portfolio at Dec. 31, 2011.

Maturity of loan portfolio at Dec. 31, 2011 (a)

Between
Within land 5 After
(in millions) 1 year years 5 years Total
Domestic:
Financial institutions $ 4,363 $ 243 $ - $ 4,606
Commercial 68 677 7 752
Commercial real
estate 247 667 535 1,449
Overdrafts 2,958 - - 2,958
Other 623 - - 623
Margin loans 10,260 2,500 - 12,760
Subtotal 18,519 4,087 542 23,148
Foreign 8,500 457 - 8,957
Total $27,019 $4,544 (b) $542 (b) $32,105

(a) Excludes loans collateralized by residential properties, lease
financings and wealth management loans and mortgages.

(b) Variable rate loans due after one year totaled $5.0 billion
and fixed rate loans totaled $114 million.

International loans
We have credit relationships in the international

markets, particularly in areas associated with our
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securities servicing and trade finance activities.
Excluding lease financings, these activities resulted in
outstanding international loans of $9.0 billion at Dec.
31, 2011 and $6.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. This
increase primarily resulted from an increase in
investment grade loans to financial institutions.

Asset quality and allowance for credit losses

Over the past several years, we have improved our
risk profile through greater focus on clients who are
active users of our non-credit services,
de-emphasizing broad-based loan growth. Our
primary exposure to the credit risk of a customer
consists of funded loans, unfunded formal contractual
commitments to lend, standby letters of credit and
overdrafts associated with our custody and securities
clearance businesses.

The role of credit has shifted to one that complements
our other services instead of as a lead product. Credit
solidifies customer relationships and, through a
disciplined allocation of capital, can earn acceptable
rates of return as part of an overall relationship.

Our credit strategy is to focus on investment grade
names to support cross-selling opportunities, avoid
single name/industry concentrations and exit high-risk
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portfolios. In addition, we make use of credit
derivatives and other risk mitigants as economic
hedges of portions of the credit risk in our portfolio.
The effect of these transactions is to transfer credit

risk to creditworthy, independent third parties. The
following table details changes in our allowance for

credit losses for the last five years.

Allowance for credit losses activity

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 (a)
Margin loans $12,760 $ 6,810 $ 4,657 $ 3977 $ 5210
Non-margin loans 31,219 30,998 32,032 39,417 45,721
Total loans at Dec. 31, 43,979 37,808 36,689 43,394 50,931
Average loans outstanding 40,919 36,305 36,424 48,132 41,515
Allowance for credit losses:
Balance, Jan. 1,
Domestic $ 511 $ 578 $ 508 $ 446 $ 407
Foreign 60 50 21 48 30
Total 571 628 529 494 437
Charge-offs:
Commercial 6) (®)] (90) 21 (22)
Commercial real estate @) ®) 31 (15) -
Financial institutions 8) (25) (34) “) -
Lease financing - - - - (36)
Wealth management loans and mortgages 1) 4 (1) @))] -
Other residential mortgages (56) (46) (60) (20) -
Foreign 8) - - (17) (19)
Other - - - - (D)
Total charge-offs (83) (88) (216) (83) (78)
Recoveries:
Commercial 3 15 - 2 1
Commercial real estate - 1 - - -
Financial institutions 2 - - -
Lease financing - - 1 3 13
Wealth management loans and mortgages - - 1 1 -
Other residential mortgages 3 2 - - -
Foreign - - - 4 1
Other - - - - -
Total recoveries 8 20 2 10 15
Net charge-offs (75) (68) (214) (73) (63)
Provision for credit losses 1 11 332 104 (11)
Transferred to discontinued operations - - (19) 27 1
Acquisitions/dispositions and other - - - (23) 130
Balance, Dec. 31,
Domestic 439 511 578 508 446
Foreign 58 60 50 21 48
Total allowance, Dec. 31, (b) $ 497 $ 571 $ 628 $ 529 $ 494
Allowance for loan losses $ 394 $ 498 $ 503 $ 415 $ 327
Allowance for lending-related commitments 103 73 125 114 167
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.18% 0.19% 0.59% 0.15% 0.15%
Net charge-offs to total allowance for credit losses 15.09 11.91 34.08 13.80 12.75
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans 0.90 1.32 1.37 0.96 0.64
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of non-margin loans 1.26 1.61 1.57 1.05 0.72
Total allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loans 1.13 1.51 1.71 1.22 0.97
Total allowance for credit losses as a percentage of non-margin loans 1.59 1.84 1.96 1.34 1.08

(a) Charge-offs, recoveries and the provision for 2007 include six months of BNY Mellon and six months of legacy The Bank of New York

Company, Inc.

(b) The allowance for credit losses at Dec. 31, 2010, and 2009 excludes discontinued operations. The allowance for credit losses includes
discontinued operations of $35 million at Dec. 31, 2008, and $17 million at Dec. 31, 2007.
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Net charge-offs were $75 million in 2011, $68 million
in 2010 and $214 million in 2009. Net charge-offs in
2011 included $53 million of other residential
mortgages primarily located in California, Florida,
New York and New Jersey, a $10 million loan in the
media portfolio and $6 million related to a broker-
dealer holding company that filed for bankruptcy. Net
charge-offs in 2010 included $44 million of other
residential mortgages primarily located in California,
New York and Florida, $17 million related to a
mortgage company, partially offset by $10 million of
net recoveries from the media portfolio. Net charge-
offs in 2009 included $71 million related to print and
broadcast media, $60 million of residential mortgages
primarily located in California, New York, New
Jersey and Florida, $31 million related to commercial
real estate exposure in Florida and New York, $38
million to finance and leasing companies and $8
million to an auto parts manufacturer.

The provision for credit losses was $1 million in 2011
compared with $11 million in 2010 and $332 million
in 2009. The lower provision in 2011 primarily
resulted from an improvement in the loan portfolio
and a decline in criticized assets. Criticized assets
include impaired credits and higher risk-rated credits.
We anticipate the quarterly provision for credit losses
to be approximately $0 to $15 million in 2012.

The total allowance for credit losses was $497 million
at Dec. 31, 2011 and $571 million at Dec. 31, 2010.
The decrease in the allowance for credit losses reflects
a 27% decline in criticized assets.

The ratio of the total allowance for credit losses to
year-end non-margin loans was 1.59% at Dec. 31,
2011 and 1.84% at Dec. 31, 2010. The ratio of the
allowance for loan losses to year-end non-margin
loans was 1.26% at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with
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1.61% at Dec. 31, 2010. The decrease reflects the
decline in criticized assets.

We had $12.8 billion of secured margin loans on our
balance sheet at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $6.8
billion at Dec. 31, 2010. We have rarely suffered a
loss on these types of loans and do not allocate any of
our allowance for credit losses to them. As a result,
we believe that the ratio of total allowance for credit
losses to non-margin loans is a more appropriate
metric to measure the adequacy of the reserve.

Based on an evaluation of the three elements and our
qualitative framework of the allowance for credit
losses, as discussed in “Critical accounting estimates”
and Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements, we have allocated our allowance for credit
losses as follows:

Allocation of allowance

2011 2010 (a) 2009 (a) 2008 (a) 2007 (a)

Other residential

mortgages 31% 41% 26% 17% 7%
Commercial 18 16 25 34 43
Financial institutions 13 2 12 11 8
Lease financing 13 16 13 17 19
Foreign 12 11 8 4 10
Commercial real estate 7 7 7 11 9
Wealth management (b) 6 7 9 6 4

Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

(a) Restated to reflect the implementation of the qualitative
allowance framework. Excludes discontinued operations in
2010 and 2009. The allowance for credit losses includes
discontinued operations in 2008 and 2007.

(b) Includes the allowance for wealth management mortgages.

The allocation of allowance for credit losses is
inherently judgmental, and the entire allowance for
credit losses is available to absorb credit losses
regardless of the nature of the loss.
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Nonperforming assets

The following table shows the distribution of nonperforming assets at the end of each of the last five years.

Nonperforming assets at Dec. 31

(dollars in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Loans:
Other residential mortgages $ 203 $ 244 $ 190 $ 97 $ 20

Commercial real estate 40 44 61 130 40
Wealth management 32 59 58 2 -
Financial institutions 23 5 172 41 24
Commercial 21 34 65 14 15
Foreign 10 7 - - 87
Total nonperforming loans 329 393 546 284 186
Other assets owned 12 6 4 8 4
Total nonperforming assets (a) $ 341() $ 399(b) $ 550 $ 292 $ 190
Nonperforming assets ratio 0.78% 1.06% 1.50% 0.67% 0.38%
Nonperforming assets ratio, excluding margin loans 1.09 1.29 1.72 0.74 0.42
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming loans 119.8 126.7 92.1 146.1 175.8
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming assets 115.5 124.8 91.5 142.1 172.1
Total allowance for credit losses/nonperforming loans 151.1 145.3 115.0 186.3 265.6
Total allowance for credit losses/nonperforming assets 145.7 143.1 114.2 181.2 260.0

(a) Nonperforming assets at Dec. 31, 2010 and Dec. 31, 2009 exclude discontinued operations. Nonperforming assets at Dec. 31, 2008
and 2007 include discontinued operations of $96 million and $18 million, respectively.

(b) Loans of consolidated investment management funds are not part of BNY Mellon’s loan portfolio. Included in these loans are
nonperforming loans of $101 million at Dec. 31, 2011 and $218 million at Dec. 31, 2010. These loans are recorded at fair value and
therefore do not impact the provision for credit losses and allowance for loan losses, and accordingly are excluded from the

nonperforming assets table above.

Nonperforming assets activity

(in millions) 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year $399  $550
Additions 180 202
Return to accrual status (57) (32)
Charge-offs (78) (86)
Paydowns/sales 93) (236)
Transferred to other real estate owned (10) 1

Balance at end of year $341  $399

Nonperforming assets were $341 million at Dec. 31,
2011, a decrease of $58 million compared with

Dec. 31, 2010. The decrease primarily resulted from
repayments of $46 million in the other residential
mortgage portfolio, $24 million in the commercial real
estate portfolio, $10 million in the commercial loan
portfolio, $8 million in the financial institutions
portfolio, $4 million in the wealth management
portfolio and $1 million in the foreign loan portfolio,
and charge-offs of $52 million in the other residential
mortgage portfolio, $8 million in the financial
institutions portfolio, $8 million in the foreign loan
portfolio, $6 million in the commercial loan portfolio
and $4 million in the commercial real estate portfolio.
Also in 2011, $27 million in the wealth management
portfolio, $21 million in other residential mortgages
and $9 million in the commercial portfolio returned to

accrual status. Additions in 2011 included $90 million
in the other residential mortgages portfolio, $36
million in the financial institutions portfolio, $25
million in commercial real estate portfolio, $12
million in the commercial loans portfolio, $12 million
in the foreign loan portfolio and $5 million in the
wealth management portfolio.

The following table shows loans past due 90 days or
more and still accruing interest.

Past due loans still accruing interest at year-end
(in millions) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Domestic:
Consumer $13  $21 $93 $27 § -
Commercial - 12 338 315 343
Total domestic 13 33 431 342 343
Foreign - - - - -

Total past due loans $13 $33  $431 $342 $343

Past due loans at Dec. 31, 2011 were primarily
comprised of other residential mortgages. For
additional information, see Note 6 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Deposits

Total deposits were $219.1 billion at Dec. 31, 2011,
an increase of 51% compared with $145.3 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. The increase in deposits reflects a
higher level of both domestic and foreign deposits
resulting from much higher client deposits in our
Investment Services business.

Noninterest-bearing deposits were $95.3 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $38.7 billion at Dec.
31, 2010. Interest-bearing deposits were $123.8
billion at Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $106.6 billion
at Dec. 31, 2010.

The aggregate amount of deposits by foreign
customers in domestic offices was $6.5 billion and
$3.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Deposits in foreign offices totaled $85.1 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, and $72.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The
majority of these deposits were in amounts in excess
of $100,000 and were primarily overnight foreign
deposits.

The following table shows the maturity breakdown of
domestic time deposits of $100,000 or more at
Dec. 31, 2011.

Domestic time deposits > $100,000 at Dec. 31, 2011

Other

Certificates time
(in millions) of deposit  deposits Total
3 months or less $ 37 $35983  $36,020
Between 3 and 6 months 19 - 19
Between 6 and 12 months 19 - 19
Over 12 months 29 - 29
Total $104  $35,983  $36,087

Short-term borrowings

We fund ourselves primarily through deposits and, to
a lesser extent, other borrowings, which are comprised
of federal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements, payables to customers and
broker-dealers, commercial paper, other borrowed
funds and long-term debt. Certain other borrowings,
for example, securities sold under repurchase
agreements, require the delivery of securities as
collateral.

See “Liquidity and dividends” below for a discussion
of long-term debt and liquidity metrics that we
monitor and the Parent’s limited reliance on short-
term borrowings.
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Information related to federal funds purchased and
securities sold under repurchase agreements is
presented below.

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under

repurchase agreements

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009

Maximum daily balance
during the year

Average daily balance

Weighted-average rate
during the year 0.02% 0.80% -%

Ending balance at Dec. 31 $ 6,267 $ 5,602 $3,348

Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 (0.05) % 2.12% 0.01%

$21,690
$ 8,572

$16,006  $9,076
$ 5356  $2,695

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements

Quarter ended
Dec. 31, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance
during the quarter $11,717 $21,690  $12,080
Average daily balance $ 8,008 $10,164 $ 7,256

Weighted-average rate

during the quarter 0.07)% 0.03% 2.13%

Ending balance $ 6267 $ 6,768 $ 5,602
Weighted-average rate at
period end (0.05) % 0.01% 2.12%

Federal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements were $6.3 billion at Dec. 31,
2011, compared with $6.8 billion at Sept. 30, 2011
and $5.6 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. The higher average
federal funds purchased and securities sold under
repurchase agreements in the third quarter of 2011
was primarily a function of attractive overnight repo
rate opportunities. The maximum daily balance in the
third quarter of 2011 was $21.7 billion and resulted
from the same attractive overnight borrowing
opportunities. At Dec. 31, 2011 and in the fourth
quarter of 2011, we earned revenue on securities sold
under repurchase agreements related to certain
securities for which we were able to charge a higher
rate for lending them.

Information related to payables to customers and
broker-dealers is presented below.

Payables to customers and broker-dealers
(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximum daily balance
during the year
Average daily balance (a)
Weighted-average rate
during the year 0.09% 0.09% 0.12%
Ending balance at Dec. 31 $12,671  $ 9,962  $10,721
Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 0.09 % 0.12% 0.07%

(a) The weighted average rate is calculated based on, and is
applied to, the average interest-bearing payables to
customers and broker-dealers which were $7,319 million in
2011, $6,439 million in 2010 and $5,263 million in 2009.

$14,481
$11,853

$13,454
$11,270

$14,398
$ 9,602
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Payables to customers and broker-dealers
Quarter ended

Dec. 31, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance

during the quarter $14,481 $14,190  $12,192
Average daily balance (a) $13,508 $12,303 $10,694
Weighted-average rate

during the quarter 0.08 % 0.10% 0.11%
Ending balance $12,671 $13,097 $ 9,962
Weighted-average rate at

period end 0.09 % 0.09% 0.12%

(a) The weighted average rate is calculated based on, and is
applied to, the average interest-bearing payables to
customers and broker-dealers, which were $8,023 million in
the fourth quarter of 2011, $7,692 million in the third quarter
of 2011 and $5,878 million in the fourth quarter of 2010.

Payables to customers and broker-dealers represent
funds awaiting re-investment and short sale proceeds,
payable on demand. Payables to customers and
broker-dealers were $12.7 billion at Dec. 31, 2011 and
$13.1 billion at Sept. 30, 2011, and $10.0 billion at
Dec. 31, 2010. Payables to customers and broker-
dealers are driven by customer trading activity levels
and market volatility.

Information related to commercial paper is presented
below.

Commerecial paper

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximum daily balance

during the year $575 $128 $537
Average daily balance $ 98 $ 18 $196
Weighted-average rate

during the year 0.04% 0.05% 0.01%
Ending balance at Dec. 31 $ 10 $ 10 $ 12
Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 0.03% 0.03% 0.02%
Commercial paper Quarter ended

Dec.31,  Sept.30, Dec. 31,

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance

during the quarter $ 46 $575 $ 53
Average daily balance $ 23 $ 300 $ 13
Weighted-average rate

during the quarter 0.03% 0.08% 0.03%
Ending balance $ 10 $ 44 $ 10
Weighted-average rate at

period end 0.03% 0.03% 0.03%

Commercial paper outstanding was $10 million at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $44 million at Sept. 30,
2011, and $10 million at Dec. 31, 2010. Our
commercial paper matures within 397 days from date
of issue and is not redeemable prior to maturity or
subject to voluntary prepayment.

Information related to other borrowed funds is
presented below.

Other borrowed funds

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2010 2009
Maximum daily balance

during the year $4,561 $5,359 $4.,789
Average daily balance $1,932 $2,045  $1,378
Weighted-average rate

during the year 1.10% 2.14% 2.28%
Balance at Dec. 31 $2,174  $2,858 $ 477
Weighted-average rate at Dec. 31 1.15% 1.77% 2.79%
Other borrowed funds Quarter ended

Dec. 31, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,

(dollar amounts in millions) 2011 2011 2010
Maximum daily balance

during the quarter $4,273 $4,561 $5,359
Average daily balance $2,109 $1,956 $1,986
Weighted-average rate

during the quarter 0.95% 1.72% 1.66%
Ending balance $2,174 $4,561 $2,858
Weighted-average rate at

period end 1.15% 1.81% 1.77%

Other borrowed funds primarily include: term federal
funds purchased under agreement to resell;
borrowings under lines of credit by our Pershing
subsidiaries; and overdrafts of subcustodian account
balances in our Investment Services businesses.
Overdrafts in these accounts typically relate to timing
differences for settlements of these business activities.
Other borrowed funds were $2.2 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 compared with $4.6 billion at Sept. 30, 2011 and
$2.9 billion at Dec. 31, 2010. Fluctuations between
periods reflect overdrafts of subcustodian accounts.

Liquidity and dividends

BNY Mellon defines liquidity as the ability of the
Parent and its subsidiaries to access funding or
convert assets to cash quickly and efficiently,
especially during periods of market stress. Liquidity
risk is the risk that BNY Mellon cannot meet its cash
and collateral obligations at a reasonable cost for both
expected and unexpected cash flows, without
adversely affecting daily operations or financial
conditions. Liquidity risk can arise from cash flow
mismatches, market constraints from inability to
convert assets to cash, inability to raise cash in the
markets or deposit run-off.
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Our overall approach to liquidity management is to
ensure that sources of liquidity are sufficient in
amount and diversity such that changes in funding
requirements at the Parent and at the various bank
subsidiaries can be accommodated routinely without
material adverse impact on earnings, daily operations
or our financial condition.

BNY Mellon seeks to maintain an adequate liquidity
cushion in both normal and stressed environments and
seeks to diversify funding sources by line of business,
customer and market segment. Additionally, we seek
to maintain liquidity ratios within approved limits and
liquidity risk tolerance; maintain a liquid asset buffer
that can be liquidated, financed and/or pledged as
necessary; and control the levels and sources of
wholesale funds.

Potential uses of liquidity include withdrawals of
customer deposits and client drawdowns on unfunded
credit or liquidity facilities. We actively monitor
unfunded lending-related commitments,

thereby reducing unanticipated funding requirements.

When monitoring liquidity, we evaluate multiple
metrics to ensure ample liquidity for expected and
unexpected events. Metrics include cashflow
mismatches, asset maturities, access to debt and
money markets, debt spreads, peer ratios,

unencumbered collateral, funding sources and balance
sheet liquidity ratios. We have begun to monitor the
Basel III liquidity coverage ratio as applied to us,
based on our current interpretation of Basel III. Ratios
we currently monitor as part of our standard analysis
include total loans as a percentage of total deposits,
deposits as a percentage of total interest-earning
assets, foreign deposits as a percentage of total
interest-earnings assets, purchased funds as a
percentage of total interest-earning assets, liquid
assets as a percentage of total interest-earning assets
and liquid assets as a percentage of purchased funds.
All of these ratios exceeded our minimum guidelines
at Dec. 31, 2011.

We also perform stress tests to verify sufficient
funding capacity is accessible after conducting
multiple stress scenarios.

Available funds are defined as liquid funds (which
include interest-bearing deposits with banks and
federal funds sold and securities purchased under
resale agreements), cash and due from banks, and
interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and
other central banks. The table below presents our total
available funds including liquid funds at period end
and on an average basis. The higher level of available
funds at Dec. 31, 2011 compared with Dec. 31, 2010
resulted from a higher level of client deposits.

Available and liquid funds Average
Dec. 31, Dec. 31,

(in millions) 2011 2010 2011 2010 2009
Available funds:
Liquid funds:

Interest-bearing deposits with banks $ 36,321  $50,200 $ 55,218  $56,679  $55,797

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements 4,510 5,169 4,809 4,660 3,238

Total liquid funds 40,831 55,369 60,027 61,339 59,035

Cash and due from banks 4,175 3,675 4,579 3,832 3,638

Interest-bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other central

banks 90,243 18,549 47,104 14,253 11,938
Total available funds $135,249  $77,593  $111,710  $79,424  $74,611
Total available funds as a percentage of total assets 42 % 31% 38% 33% 35%

On an average basis for 2011 and 2010, non-core
sources of funds such as money market rate accounts,
certificates of deposit greater than $100,000, federal
funds purchased, trading liabilities and other
borrowings were $17.5 billion and $13.9 billion,
respectively. The increase primarily reflects higher
levels of federal funds purchased, money market rate
accounts and trading liabilities, partially offset by
lower levels of other borrowed funds. Average foreign
deposits, primarily from our European-based
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Investment Services business, were $83.8 billion in
2011 compared with $71.4 billion in 2010. Domestic
savings and other time deposits averaged $35.9 billion
in 2011 compared with $28.0 billion in 2010. Both
increases reflect growth in client deposits. The deposit
growth trend could be impacted by proposed money
market fund reform and the expiration of the
temporary unlimited FDIC insurance coverage on
noninterest-bearing deposits expiring on Dec. 31,
2012.
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Average payables to customers and broker-dealers
were $7.3 billion in 2011 and $6.4 billion in 2010.
Long-term debt averaged $18.1 billion in 2011 and
$16.7 billion in 2010. The increase in average long-
term debt was driven by planned capital actions and
anticipated maturities. Average noninterest-bearing
deposits increased to $58.0 billion in 2011 from $35.2
billion in 2010 reflecting growth in client deposits. A
significant reduction in our Investment Services
business would reduce our access to deposits.

The Parent has four major sources of liquidity:

cash on hand;

dividends from its subsidiaries;

access to the commercial paper market; and
access to the long-term debt and equity markets.

Our bank subsidiaries can declare dividends to the
Parent of approximately $1.4 billion, subsequent to
Dec. 31, 2011 without the need for a regulatory
waiver. In addition, at Dec. 31, 2011, non-bank
subsidiaries of the Parent had liquid assets of
approximately $1.4 billion.

In the first quarter of 2011, BNY Mellon increased its
quarterly cash dividend to $0.13 per common share.
Any increase in BNY Mellon’s ongoing quarterly
dividends would require approval from the Federal
Reserve. The Federal Reserve’s current guidance
provides that, for large bank holding companies like
us, dividend payout ratios exceeding 30% of after-tax
net income will receive particularly close scrutiny.

Restrictions on our ability to obtain funds from our
subsidiaries are discussed in more detail in Note 20 of
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2011 and 2010, the Parent’s average commercial
paper borrowings were $98 million and $18 million,
respectively. The Parent had cash of $4.6 billion at
Dec. 31, 2011, compared with $3.2 billion at Dec. 31,
2010. The Parent issues commercial paper, on an
overnight basis, to certain custody clients with excess
demand deposit balances. Overnight commercial
paper outstanding issued by the Parent was $10
million at both Dec. 31, 2011 and 2010. Net of
commercial paper outstanding, the Parent’s cash
position at Dec. 31, 2011, increased by $1.3 billion
compared with Dec. 31, 2010, reflecting the issuance
of long-term debt.

The Parent’s major uses of funds are payment of
dividends, principal and interest payments on its
borrowings, acquisitions, and additional investments
in its subsidiaries.

In 2011, we repurchased 34.8 million common shares
in the open market at an average price of $24.00 per
share for a total of $835 million.

The Parent’s reliance on short-term unsecured funding
sources such as commercial paper, federal funds and
Eurodollars purchased, certificates of deposit, time
deposits and bank notes is limited. The Parent’s
liquidity target is to have sufficient cash on hand to
meet its obligations over the next 18 months without
the need to receive dividends from its bank
subsidiaries or issue debt. As of Dec. 31, 2011, the
Parent met its liquidity target.

In October 2011, our $226 million credit agreement
with 10 financial institutions matured. We did not
renew this credit agreement. We are satisfied that our
other sources of liquidity are sufficient to meet our
liquidity needs.

In addition to our other funding sources, we also have
the ability to access the capital markets. In June 2010,
we filed shelf registration statements on Form S-3
with the SEC covering the issuance of certain
securities, including an unlimited amount of debt,
common stock, preferred stock and trust preferred
securities, as well as common stock issued under the
Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reinvestment
Plans. These registration statements will expire in
June 2013, at which time we plan to file new shelf
registration statements.

Our ability to access the capital markets on favorable
terms, or at all, is partially dependent on our credit
ratings, which, as of Dec. 31, 2011, were as follows:

Debt ratings at Dec. 31, 2011 Standard
Moody’s & Poor’s  Fitch DBRS

Parent:
Long-term senior debt Aa2 A+ AA- AA (low)
Subordinated debt Aa3 A A+ A (high)
Trust-preferred
securities Al BBB A A (high)
Short-term P1 A-1 Fl+ R-1
(middle)
The Bank of New York Mellon:
Long-term senior debt Aaa AA-  AA- AA
Long-term deposits Aaa AA- AA AA
Short-term deposits P1 A-1+  Fl+ R-1 (high)
BNY Mellon, N.A.:
Long-term senior debt Aaa AA- AA-(a) AA
Long-term deposits Aaa AA- AA AA
Short-term deposits P1 A-1+  Fl+ R-1 (high)
Outlook: Ratings Negative Stable Stable
under

review

(a) Represents senior debt issuer default rating.
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In April 2010, Moody’s announced that regulatory
changes in the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”)
could result in lower debt and deposit ratings for U.S.
banks and other financial institutions whose ratings
currently benefit from assumed government support.
Currently, the ratings for the Parent benefit from one
notch of “lift” and The Bank of New York Mellon and
BNY Mellon, N.A. benefit from two notches of “lift”
as a result of the rating agency’s government support
assumptions. Moody’s continues to evaluate whether
to reduce its support assumptions to below
pre-financial crisis levels for banks that currently
benefit from ratings uplift. In this context, in June
2011, Moody’s rating outlook on the Parent and its
rated subsidiaries deposits, senior debt, and senior
subordinated debt changed to negative from stable. On
Aug. 3, 2011, Moody’s reiterated its negative outlook
on the Parent and its rated subsidiaries to match
Moody’s negative outlook on the U.S. Government,
and also due to its opinion that U.S. Government
support to systemically important banks could decline,
over time, as the Dodd-Frank Act and other banking
system changes are implemented.

In December 2011, Moody’s placed the long-term
ratings of the Parent and its rated subsidiaries on
review for potential downgrade. Moody’s indicated
that it would review BNY Mellon’s risk profile,
capital plans and earnings prospects in light of an
operating environment characterized by lower interest
rates, greater capital markets volatility and heightened
litigation risks. Moody’s indicated that it did not
expect to change its systemic support assumptions
during its current review. All short-term ratings for
BNY Mellon were affirmed at Prime-1 and are
unaffected by this action.

In November 2011, S&P revised its ratings
methodology for banks (the Banking Industry Country
Risk Assessment). In that context, on Nov. 29, 2011,
S&P lowered the debt ratings of the Parent and its
rated subsidiaries by one notch. S&P also revised its
rating outlook on the Parent and its rated subsidiaries
to negative from stable, reflecting S&P’s outlook on
the U.S. government rating and its assumption that our
ratings enjoy one notch of “uplift” from assumed
government support.

In January 2012, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch and DBRS
reaffirmed all of our debt ratings.

Long-term debt increased to $19.9 billion at Dec. 31,
2011 from $16.5 billion at Dec. 31, 2010, primarily
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due to the issuance of $5.1 billion of senior medium-
term notes, summarized in the following table,
partially offset by $1.3 billion of senior and
subordinated debt that matured in 2011 and $596
million of retail medium-term notes that were called
in 2011.

Debt issuances
(in millions) 2011

Senior medium-term notes:
3-month LIBOR + 27 bps senior medium term notes

due 2014 $ 600
3-month LIBOR + 28 bps senior medium term notes

due 2014 350
3-month LIBOR + 85 bps senior medium term notes

due 2014 250
1.5% senior medium-term notes due 2014 350
1.7% senior medium-term notes due 2014 500
2.3% senior medium-term notes due 2016 1,000
2.4% senior medium-term notes due 2017 500
3.55% senior medium-term notes due 2021 1,000
4.15% senior medium-term notes due 2021 500

Total debt issuances $5,050

In February 2012, we issued $750 million of senior
notes maturing in 2015 at an annual interest rate of
1.20% and $500 million of senior notes maturing in
2021 at an annual interest rate of 3.55%.

The Parent has $3.45 billion of long-term debt that
will mature in 2012 and has the option to call $142
million of subordinated debt in 2012, which it may
call and refinance if market conditions are favorable.

We have $1.35 billion of trust preferred securities that
are freely callable in 2012. These securities qualify as
Tier 1 capital. Any decision to call these securities
will be based on interest rates, the availability of cash
and capital, and regulatory conditions, as well as the
implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act, which
disqualifies these trust preferred securities from the
Tier 1 capital of large bank holding companies,
including BNY Mellon, over a three-year period
beginning Jan. 1, 2013.

The double leverage ratio is the ratio of investment in
subsidiaries divided by our consolidated equity plus
trust preferred securities. Our double leverage ratio
was 107.3% at Dec. 31, 2011 and 100.7% at Dec. 31,
2010. The increase in the ratio primarily reflects a
capital contribution to The Bank of New York Mellon
due to the increased size of its balance sheet. The
double leverage ratio is monitored by regulators and
rating agencies and is an important constraint on our
ability to invest in our subsidiaries and expand our
businesses.



Results of Operations (continued)

Pershing LLC, an indirect subsidiary of BNY Mellon,
has committed and uncommitted lines of credit in
place for liquidity purposes which are guaranteed by
the Parent. The committed line of credit of $1.085
billion extended by 19 financial institutions matures in
March 2012. Average daily borrowings against these
lines was $63 million in 2011. Additionally, Pershing
has another committed line of credit for $125 million
extended by one financial institution that matures in
September 2012. The average borrowing against this
line of credit was $1 million during 2011. Pershing
LLC has nine separate uncommitted lines of credit
amounting to $1.6 billion in aggregate. Average daily
borrowing under these lines was $542 million, in
aggregate, during 2011.

The committed line of credit maintained by Pershing
LLC requires the Parent to maintain:

e shareholders’ equity of $10 billion;

e aratio of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for
credit losses to nonperforming assets of at least
2.5; and

e adouble leverage ratio less than 130%.

We are currently in compliance with these covenants.

Pershing Limited, an indirect U.K.-based subsidiary
of BNY Mellon, has committed and uncommitted
lines of credit in place for liquidity purposes, which
are guaranteed by the Parent. The committed line of
credit of $233 million extended by five financial
institutions matures in March 2012. There were no
borrowings under these lines during 2011. Pershing
Limited has two separate uncommitted lines of credit
amounting to $250 million in aggregate and an
overdraft facility of $250 million. Average daily
borrowing under these lines was $37 million, in
aggregate, during 2011.

The committed line of credit maintained by Pershing
Limited requires the Parent to maintain:

e shareholders’ equity of $5 billion;

e aratio of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for
credit losses to nonperforming assets of at least
2.5; and

e adouble leverage ratio of less than 130%.

We are currently in compliance with these covenants.

Statement of cash flows

Cash provided by operating activities was $2.2 billion
in 2011 compared to $4.1 billion in 2010 and $3.8
billion in 2009. In 2011 and 2010, the cash flows from
operations were principally the result of earnings. In
2009, earnings, excluding the non-cash impact of
investment securities losses, depreciation and
amortization and accruals and other balances, partially
offset by deferred tax benefits and changes in trading
activities, were a significant source of funds.

In 2011, cash used for investing activities was $80.2
billion compared to $14.9 billion in 2010 and cash
provided by investing activities of $23.1 million in
2009. In 2011, increases in interest-bearing deposits
with the Federal Reserve and other central banks, and
the purchases of securities, partially offset by a
decrease in interest-bearing deposits with banks and
sales, paydowns and maturities of securities, were
significant uses of funds. In 2010, purchases of
securities available-for-sale, an increase in interest-
bearing deposits with the Federal Reserve and other
central banks, and the Acquisitions were a significant
use of funds. In 2009, interest-bearing deposits with
the Federal Reserve and other central banks was a
significant source of funds, partially offset by
purchases of securities available for sale.

Cash provided by financing activities was $78.8
billion in 2011 and $10.8 billion in 2010, compared
with $28.0 billion in 2009 used for financing
activities. In 2011, changes in deposits and payables
to customers and broker dealers and proceeds from the
issuance of long-term debt were significant sources of
funds. In 2010, change in deposits, federal funds
purchased and securities sold under repurchase
agreements, other funds borrowed and the proceeds
from issuances of long-term debt were significant
sources of funds, partially offset by repayments of
long-term debt. In 2009, change in deposits, other
borrowed funds and the repurchase of the Series B
preferred stock and the warrant were significant uses
of funds, partially offset by proceeds from the
issuance of long term debt and common stock, and the
change in federal funds purchased and securities sold
under repurchase agreements.
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Commitments and obligations

We have contractual obligations to make fixed and
determinable payments to third parties as indicated in

the table below. The table excludes certain obligations
such as trade payables and trading liabilities, where
the obligation is short-term or subject to valuation
based on market factors.

Contractual obligations at Dec. 31, 2011 Payments due by period
Less than Over
(in millions) Total lyear 1-3years 3-5years 5 years
Deposits without a stated maturity $ 33,959 $ 33,959 $ - $ - $ -
Term deposits 89,800 89,770 23 3 4
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements 6,267 6,267 - - -
Payables to customers and broker-dealers 12,671 12,671 - - -
Other borrowed funds (a) 2,184 2,184 - - -
Long-term debt (b) 24,396 4,294 7,116 4,396 8,590
Unfunded pension and post retirement benefits 431 44 82 96 209
Capital leases 81 36 43 2 -
Total contractual obligations $169,789  $149,225 $7,264 $4,497 $8,803

(a) Including commercial paper.
(b) including interest.

We have entered into fixed and determinable commitments as indicated in the table below:

Other commitments at Dec. 31, 2011

Amount of commitment expiration per period

Less than Over

(in millions) Total 1year 1-3years 3-5years 5 years
Securities lending indemnifications $268,812  $268,812  $ - $ - $ -
Lending-related commitments 28,406 9,910 6,521 11,773 202
Standby letters of credit 6,707 2,238 3,492 829 148
Operating leases 2,065 318 555 394 798
Commercial letters of credit 437 437 - - -
Investment commitments (a) 165 21 - 143
Purchase obligations (b) 1,304 631 539 91 43
Support agreements 63 - 63 - -
Total commitments $307,959  $282,367 $11,170 $13,088 $1,334

(a)
(b)

significant terms.

In addition to the amounts shown in the table above,
at Dec. 31, 2011, $250 million of unrecognized tax
benefits have been recorded as liabilities in
accordance with ASC 740. Related to these
unrecognized tax benefits, we have also recorded a
liability for potential interest of $59 million. At this
point, it is not possible to determine when these
amounts will be settled or resolved.

See “Liquidity and dividends” and Note 24 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
further discussion of the source of funds for our
commitments and obligations and known material
trends in our capital resources.
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Includes private equity and Community Reinvestment Act commitments.
Purchase obligations are defined as agreements to purchase goods or services that are enforceable and legally binding and specify all

Off-balance sheet arrangements

Off-balance sheet arrangements discussed in this
section are limited to guarantees, retained or
contingent interests, support agreements, and
obligations arising out of unconsolidated variable
interest entities. For BNY Mellon, these items include
certain credit guarantees and securitizations.
Guarantees include: lending-related guarantees issued
as part of our corporate banking business; securities
lending indemnifications issued as part of our
servicing and fiduciary businesses; and support
agreements issued to customers in our Investment
Services and Investment Management businesses. See
Note 24 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for a further discussion of our off-balance
sheet arrangements.
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Capital

Capital data
(dollar amounts in millions except per
share amounts; common shares in

thousands) 2011 2010
At period end:
BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity to

total assets ratio 10.3% 13.1%
Total BNY Mellon shareholders’ equity $ 33,417 $ 32,354
Tangible BNY Mellon shareholders’

equity — Non-GAAP (a) $ 12,787 $ 11,057
Book value per common share $ 2762 $ 26.06
Tangible book value per common

share — Non-GAAP (a) $ 1057  $ 8.91
Closing common stock price per share  $ 1991 § 30.20
Market capitalization $ 24,085 $ 37,494
Common shares outstanding 1,209,675 1,241,530
Full-y